
LARRY L. LANCASTER 
Chairman 

JEANNETTE M. COUNCIL 
Vice Chairman 

GLENN B. ADAMS 
MICHAEL C. BOOSE 
CHARLES E. EV ANS 

W. MARSHALL FAIRCLOTH
JIMMY KEEFE 

CUMBERLAND 
*COUNTY*

NORTH CAROLINA 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MEMORANDUM 

CANDICE WHITE 
Clerk to the Board 

KELLIE BEAM 
Deputy Clerk 

TO: 

FROM: 

Policy Committee Members (Commissioners Boose, Evans and Lancaster) 

Kellie Beam, Deputy Clerk to the Board i{fj 

DATE: July 27, 2018 

SUBJECT: Policy Committee Special Meeting - Thursday, August 2, 2018 

The regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners' committees (Finance, Policy and 
Facilities Committee) has been CANCELLED and rescheduled as a SPECIAL MEETING on 
Thursday, August 2, 2018 beginning at 8:30 a.m. at the Department of Social Services, 
1225 Ramsey Street, conference rooms C and D. All committee meetings will start as 
soon as the previous committee adjourns. 

AGENDA 

1. Approval of Minutes - June 7, 2018 Regular Meeting (Pg. 21

2. Consideration of Ordinance Regulating Maintenance of Vegetation in Residential
Subdivisions (Pg. 471

3. Consideration of Amendment to the Purchasing Policy to Reflect Updates in the
Federal Uniform Procurement Standards (Pg. 501

4. Update from Public Information and Governmental Affairs: Collaborative Community
Branding Project (Pg. 641

5. Other Items of Business (NO MATERIALS)

5th Floor, Courthouse• P.O. Box 1829 • Fayetteville, North Carolina 28302-1829 

(910) 678-7771 • Fax: (910) 678-7770



Juuc 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
CUMBERLAND COUNTY POLICY COMMITI'EE 

JUDGE E. MAURICE BRASWELi , CUMBERLAND COUNTY COURT! IOUSE 
11 7 DICK STREET, STl-1 fLOOR, ROOM 564 

JUNE 7, 20 18 
MINUTES 

i\rlEl'vlBERS PRESENT: Commissioner Michael Boose 
Commissioner Charles Evans 
Commissioner Larry Lancaster, Policy Committee Chair 

OTI IER COMMISSIONERS 
PRESENT: Commissioner Glenn Adams 

Commissioner Jeannette Council 
Commissioner Marshall Faircloth 
Commissioner Jimmy Keefe 

OTHERS PRESENT: Amy Cannon, County Manager 
Sally Shutt, Assistant County Manager 
Duane Holder, Assistant County Manager 
Melissa Cardinali, Assistant County Manager 
Rick Moorefield, County Attorney 
Deborah Shaw, Budget Analyst 
Heather l larris, Budget Aimlyst 
Vicki Evans, Finance Director 
Geneve Mankel, Communications & Outreach Coordinator 
Darswcil Rogers, P\VC Commissioner 
Brenda Jackson, Department of Social Services Director 
AJ Riddle, Assistant County Engineer 
Ivonne Mendez, Accounting Supervisor 
Julean Self, Human Resources Director 
Amanda Bullard, Purchasing Manager 
Candice White, Clerk to the Board 
Press 

Policy Committee Chair Lancaster called the meeting to order. 

I. APPROVAL Of MINUTES - MAY 3, 20 18 REGULAR MEETING 

MOTION: 

SECOND: 
VOTE: 

Commissioner Boose moved to approve the May 3, 2018 meeting minutes 
as presented. 
Commissioner Lancaster 
UNANIMOUS (2-0) 

ITEM NO .. _....l,=----



June 7, 2018 Policy Coinmittee 

DRAFT 
2. PRESENTATION ON LOCAL PURCHASING COMMITTEE ESTABLISHED 

BY PUBLIC WORKS COMMISSION (PWC) 

BACKGROUND: 
Commissioner Jimmy Keefe requested that Mr. Darsweil Rogers present an update to the 
Policy Committee about the Local Purchasing committee assembled by PWC in 2017 to 
research and establish guidelines and policies for governmental agencies to shop local and 
stay in compliance with state law. 

Mr. Rogers will provide an overview of the committee's origins and goals; report on the 
activities to date, including the Building Business Rally held on May 22, 20 I 8, in which 
Cumberland County participated; and discuss the group's plans for next steps. 

RECOMMENDATION/PROPOSED ACTION: 
For information purposes only. 

**** 
Darsweil Rogers, PWC Commissioner and Chair of the Local Building Business Rally, 
reviewed the background information and recommendation as recorded above. 

Mr. Rogers discussed the following information in a PowerPoint Presentation: 

Genesis of the Building Business Rally (BBR) 
• 2015 City Council asks PWC to accelerate Phase V Sewer Installations 

• PWC solicits bids to accelerate work 

o NOTAKERS 

• Commission defines building local supplier capacity a strategic priority 

Definition of Local 
• Have office within the Metropolitan Statistical Area 

• Impacts local employment 

• Include local subcontractors 

• Local provider is bidding for business 

• 2017 - 45% of dollars in FY 2017 remained local 

• $20.5 million of$45.4 million 

Initial Rallies 2016 
• City, County and P\VC hosted two rallies' 

• Educational 
o Provided general information 

o How to be a subcontractor 

o How to get bonding 

• Modest Success 

2 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
Steps to the BBR 

• Sept. 2017: 

• Oct. 2017: 

• Nov. 2017: 

• Jan. 2018: 

• Feb. 2018: 

• Apr. 2018: 

• May 2018: 

Chair Evelyn Shaw asked me to head up initiative 

BRR Initial Meeting 

Defined Local to be the MSA 
Decided on a BBR for 20 I 8 

• Stayed under the radar in planning 

Selected venue & date 

Broaden invite list 

Proclamations from across the community 

Launched faybids.com 

Successful Rally 

Rally Recap 
• 13 Purchasing Managers 

• 14 Suppm1 Organizations 

• 150 Companies 

• 300+ Attendees 

• 6 Breakout Sessions 

Survey Results 
• 94% Ranked BBR as Excellent/Very Good 

• 91% said BBR was beneficial to their business 

• 96% made potential business connections 

Next Steps 
• BBR Committee Self-Assessment & Lessons Learned on June 19, 2018 

• Opportunities and Constraints 

o faybids.com website 

o Tracking results 
o Define goals and establish measurements 

o Policymaker commitment 

Personal Observation 
• Community Entrepreneurship not core to our DNA 

o Bids offered with no takers 
o Lots of information/support but disjointed and siloed (14 support 

organizations) 

• Coordinated & Committed Municipal Outreach 

o Education & Incentives 
o Too easy to continue using the same suppliers 

o Accountability 

o Incentives 

3 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
o Broaden Corporate Involvement 

Commissioner Keefe asked if the goal is for all agencies to incorporate the same idea of 
local business and asked if Mr, Rogers could share what he would like to see the County 
do, Mr. Rogers responded he would like a firm commitment from the County as far as 
ongoing participation. Mr. Rogers further stated a County decision maker and someone 
comfortable representing the County attending the meetings would be very helpful. 

No action taken. 

3. CONSIDERATION OF POLICY REVISION AND RESOLUTION TO ENGAGE 

IN ELECTRONIC PAYMENTS 

BACKGROUND: 
North Carolina General Statute 159-28 requires the finance officer to pre~audit financial 
obligations of the County. The pre-audit simply means that the finance officer has determined 
the County has money available to pay the obligation and affix a certification to the obligation. 

Recently, NCGS 159-28 was modified to address the use of electronic transactions. 
Examples of electronic transactions include: 

• A contract or agreement that has been approved by the Local 
Government Commission (LGC); 

• A payroll expenditure, including one related to employee benefits 
• A purchase made with a purchasing card, credit card, or fuel card 

transaction 

In March 2018 the Local Government Commission issued guidance on implementing the 
updated pre-audit mies. While the rules do not exempt the finance ofticer from performing a 
preaudit on electronic payments, it does exempt affixing the pre-audit certification on 
electronic transactions. 

In order to be in compliance with the rules, two things should occur. One (I), a modification 
of the County's Financial Policies is required. Two (2), consider adopting a resolution 
authorizing the County to engage in electronic transactions without affixing a pre-audit 
certificate. 

RECOMMENDED/PROPOSED ACTION: 
Management recommends the Policy Committee approve and forward to the Board 
of Commissioners: 

1. The revised financial policies; and 
2. The resolution authorizing the County to engage in electronic 

payments as defined by G.S. 159~28. 

4 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 

***** 

County of Cumberland 
Resolution authorizing County of Cumberland 

to engage in electronic 1rnymcnts as defined by G.S. 159R28 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Board of County Commissioners that the County of 
Cumberland is authorized to engage in electronic payments as defined by G.S. I 59R28; 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has adopted a written policy for pre~ 
auditing obligations that will be incurred by electronic payments as required by NC 
Administrative Code 20 NCAC 03.0409; 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has adopted a written policy for 
disbursing public funds by electronic transaction as required by NC Administrative Code 
20 NCAC 03.04 IO; 

No,v, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of County Commissioners of 
the County of Cumberland 

Section 1. Authorizes the County of Cumberland to engage in electronic payments as 
defined by G.S. 159-28; 

Section 2. Authorizes the County of Cumberland to disburse public funds by 
electronic transaction as required by NC Administrative Code 20 NCAC 03.0410; and 

Section 3. This resolution shall .take effect immediately upon its passage. 

***** 

Cumberland County 
Section I - Board Approved Policies 

Subsection 3: Cumberland County Financial/ Audit 
Policy No. 3R 1: Financial Policies 

The original submission of the Cumberland County Financial Policies was approved 
by the Board of Commissioners on September 2, 2008. The Financial Policies were 
brought back for revision and approved by the Finance Committee on March 3, 
2011 and ap1lrovcd at the I\-Iarch 21, 2011 Board of Commissioners Meeting. The 
Financial Policies were brought back for revision and approved by the Policy 

5 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
Committee on June 7, 2018 and approved at the June 18, 2018 Board of 
Commissioners i\.'leeting. 

LO PURPOSE 

The County of Cumberland has established comprehensive financial policies supporting 
management of our financial resources by providing effective control, pmdcnt decision 
making and compliance with legal requirements. 

2.0 SCOPE 

The essential goals to be accomplished through consistent application of these policies 
include: 
• To align long-term financial planning with short-term daily operations and 

decision-making. 

• To maintain and improve the County's financial position. 

• To maintain the County's credit ratings by meeting or exceeding the 

requirements of rating agencies through sound, conservative financial decision 

making. 

• To comply with the North Carolina Budget and Fiscal Control Act and the 

policies of the North Carolina Local Government Commission (the "LGC"). 

• To ensure cost effective, efficient and timely procurement of necessary goods 
and services to enable County departments in achieving their mission of 

effective service delivery to all citizens. 

• To provide credibility to the citizens of the County regarding financial 
operations through active investment, debt and procurement management as 

well as financial planning and monitoring. 

3.0 STATEMENT OF POLICIES 

The financial policies are broken into three separate categories: Operating Budget/ Fund 
Balance Policies, Asset Liability Management Policies and Accounting, Auditing and 
Financing Reporting Policies. 

The Cumberland County Board of Commissioners (the "Board") is a seven-member board, 
with each member serving a four-year term. To enhance communication and effective 
decision making, four subcommittees of the Board have been in existence for many years. 
These three-member subcommittees have been structured to focus on the following areas; 
Finance, Policy, Personnel, and Facilities issues. Each committee meets monthly as 
needed, in a published, open meeting. The Finance Committee serves as the Audit 
Committee of the County and makes recommendations to the full Board upon review of 
issues that have a fiscal impact upon the County. Periodically, the Finance Director 
updates the Committee on the financial condition of the County as a part of their monthly 

6 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
agenda. The annual audit is presented in detail to the Board annually at a night meeting 
which is televised on a local channel for the citizens of Cumberland County. 

4.0 OPERA TING BUDGET I FUND BALANCE POLICIES 

4.1 Budget Guidelines 

4.1.1 The County's Annual Budget Ordinance will be balanced in 
accordance with the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control 

Act(G.S. l59-8(a)). 

4.1.2 The County's operating budget will be prepared in accordance 
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. 

4.1.3 The County's Annual Budget Ordinance will be adopted by each 

July I (G.S. l59-I3(a)). 

4.1.4 The annual budget shall be developed as a financial plan to achieve 
long-term and short-term goals adopted by the Governing Board 
and as an operational guide for provision of programs and services 

to the community. 

4.2 Revenue Policy 
4.2.1 Ad Valorem Tax - As provided by the North Carolina Budget and 

Fiscal Control Act, estimated revenue from the Ad Valorem Tax 

levy will be budgeted as follows: 

a. Assessed valuation will be estimated based upon historical 
trends and growth patterns in a conservative manner. 

b. The estimated percentage of collection will not exceed the 
actual collection percentage of the preceding fiscal year, in 

accordance with State law. 
c. The property tax rate will be set each year based upon the 

costs of providing general governmental services, meeting 
debt service obligations and maintaining any reserves or 
fund balances the Board deems necessary. 

4.2.2 Economically Sensitive Revenues - The County has certain 
revenues, specifically occupancy, food and beverage, and sales 
taxes that can be adversely affected by regional and national 

7 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
economic conditions and military deployments. These revenues 
shall be budgeted in a conservative manner. 

4.2.3 User Fees - The Board will establish all user fees annually. The 
user fees will maximize charges for services that can be individually 
identified and where costs are directly related to the provision of or 
to the level of service provided. 

Emphasis on user fees results in the following benefits: 
• The burden on the Ad Valorem tax is reduced. 

• User fees are paid by all users, including that exempt from 
property taxes. 

• User fees help minimize subsidization in any instance 
where there are requirements in order to qualify for the use 
of the service and the service is not provided to the general 
public. 

• User fees produce infomrntion on the demand level for 
services and help to make a connection between the 
amount paid and the services rendered. 

4.2.4 Interest Income- Interest income is subject to variability based upon 
changes in prevailing interest rates, which cannot be predicted with 
certainty. Such revenue shall therefore be budgeted in a 
conservative manner within the Annual Budget Ordinance and shall 
comply with Section III of this policy regarding Asset - Liability 
Management. 

4.2.5 Grant Funding - Staff will pursue opportunities for grant funding. 
Application for grant funding will be made after a grant has been 
evaluated for consistency with the Board's goals and compatibility 
with County programs and o~jectivcs. Staff must have prior 
approval from the County Manager to apply for a grant. All awarded 
grants can only be accepted by Board action at which time the 
related budget shall be established. 

a. Grants that have been awarded in prior years and are 
recurring in nature will be included and addressed 
through the annual budget process. 

8 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
b. Grants that fund operating expenditures but have a funding 

termination date must fully disclose that fact to the Board 
prior to acceptance. 

c. The grant manager for each grant shall be the related 
department head. The grant manager is responsible for all 
grant monitoring, compliance and reporting. The grant 
manager will provide copies of all documents to the Finance 
Department. The Finance Department will maintain a grant 
file by fiscal year for each active grant. 

d. Existing exceptions that relate to annual allocation amounts 
must be approved by County Finance 

4.3 Expenditure Policy- Expenditures will be processed in accordance with the 
requirements of G.S. 159-28, Budgetary Accounting for Appropriations. 

4.3.1 Expenditure budgets shall be monitored throughout the fiscal year 
by department heads, the Finance Department and the County 
Manager. Budget compliance is the responsibility of the department 

head and the Finance Director. 

4.3.2 Budgeted funds will only be spent for categorical purposes for 
which they are intended. The annual operating budget ordinance 
defines staff authorization for operating budget adjustments. 
Appropriations of debt proceeds will be made only for the purpose 
for which such debt instrument was issued or for the payment of 
debt principal and interest. Donations will be spent only toward the 

intent for which they were given. 

4.3.3 For continuing contracts, funds will be appropriated in the annual 
budget ordinance to meet current year obligations arising under the 

contract, in accordance with G.S. 160A-17. 

4.3.4 Payroll will be processed in accordance with the requirements of the 
Fair Labor Standards Act. Overtime and benefit payments will be 
made in accordance with the County's Personnel Ordinance. 

4.3.5 The County will fund current expenditures with current resources 
and will strive to avoid balancing budgets utilizing one-time 
revenues, in accordance with the Fund Balance Policy below. 

9 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
4.3.6 The County will employ the use of the carryover method for re

appropriating outstanding purchase orders and contracts as of the 
end of each fiscal year into the new fiscal year. The process shall 
be explained in detail in each year's budget ordinance. Cumberland 
County has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for 
programs with multiple revenue sources. The Finance Officer will 
use resources in the following hierarchy; bond proceeds, federal 
funds, state funds, local fees, and then county funds. For purposes 
of fund balance classification expenditures are to be spent from 
restricted fund balance first, followed in-order by committed fund 
balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. 

The Finance Ofi1ccr has the authority to deviate from this policy if 
it is in the best interest of the County. 

4.4 Reserve/ Fund Balance Policy 

4.4. l In accordance with State statute, appropriated fund balance in any 
fund will not exceed the sum of cash and investments less the sum 
of liabilities, encumbrances, and deferred revenues arising from 
cash receipts. 

4.4.2 The County will maintain a General Fund unassigned fund balance 
ofno less than 10% which exceeds the minimum eight percent (8%) 
recommended by the LGC. Additionally, the target goal for total 
spendable fund balance will be at least 15% of total expenditures for 
the fiscal year. The annual appropriation for subsequent years' 
expenditures should not exceed 3% of budgeted recurring general 
fund expenditures. 

a. Purpose of Reserve: These funds will be utilized to avoid 
cash flow interruptions, generate interest income, eliminate 
the need for shorHcrm borrowing, and maintain the 
County's credit ratings. 

b. Reserve Draw Downs: The fund balance may be 
pmvosefully drawn down below the target percentage for 
emergencies, nonrecurring expenditures, or major capital 
projects. 

10 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
c. Reserve Replenishment: If the fund balance falls below the 

target percentage for two consecutive fiscal years, the 
County will replenish funds by direct appropriation 
beginning in the following fiscal year. In that instance, the 
County will annually appropriate 20% of the difference 
between the target percentage level and the actual balance 

until the target level is met. 

4.4.3 Any General Fund unassigned fund balance that exceeds the 10% 
target goal may be reserved for onetime future projects, 

4.4.4 The County will appropriate within the annual budget a General 
Fund Contingency appropriation each fiscal year of at least 

$500,000. 

4.4.5 The County shall maintain a School Capital Reserve account and all 
funds accumulated shall be used for debt service on school related 
debt and other school capital needs. 

a. Based on the North Carolina Association of County 
Commissioner's methodology for calculating statutory 
Article 40 and 42 set asides for school construction, the 
Board has committed these sales tax funds to the purposes 
listed immediately above. 

b. All Public-School Building Capital Fund ("ADM money") 
and Lottery proceeds shall be budgeted within the School 
Capital Reserve account and shall be used for debt service 
for school related debt and for school construction needs as 

appropriate. 

4.4.6 Assigned for subsequent years' expenditures is the portion of fund 
balance that has been approved by formal action of the Board of 
County Commissioners for appropriation into the next fiscal year. A 
modification of this amount requires action by the l3oard. The Board 
may at its discretion, make other assignments of fund balance. The 
Board authorizes the County Manager to amend these assigned 
amounts to comply with the County's fund balance percentage 

policies. 

5.0 ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT POLICIES 

11 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 

5.1 Capital Investment and Debt Policy 

5.1.l Capital Improvements Plan 

a. The County will update a five-year capital improvement plan 

(CIP) which projects capital needs and details the estimated 
costs, description and anticipated funding sources for capital 

projects. 

b. The annual update of the CIP will be presented at the Board's 

Budget Planning retreat and included in the annual operating 

budget process. 

c. The first year of the five-year CIP will be the basis of formal 

fiscal year appropriations during the annual budget process. 

d. The CIP will generally address those capital assets with a 
value of $100,000 or more and a useful life of five years or 

more. 

e. The County includes equipment and furnishings as well as 
projected annual operating costs in the appropriate year in 

the CIP. 

( The County acknowledges pay-as-you-go financing as a 

significant capital financing source but will ultimately 

determine the most appropriate financing strncture for each 

capital project on an individual basis after examining all 

relevant factors of the project. 

5.1.2 Ten Year School Facilities Plan 

The County requires an annual update from the Cumberland County 
Board of Education of its Ten-Year School Facilities Plan. The 
County fully expects to see all new capital projects first appear in 
the ninth or tenth year of the school facilities plan unless dictated 
otherwise by State or Federal mandates of new sources of funds, 
such as a State bond issue for local consideration. 

5.1.3 Fixed Assets 
The capitalization threshold for fixed assets shall be $5,000 and 
$7,500 for capital improvements. The threshold will be applied to 

12 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
individual fixed assets and not to groups of fixed assets. Fixed assets 
will be capitalized if they have a useful life of one year or more 
following the date of acquisition. 

5.1.4 Debt Policy 

a. Debt will only be incurred for financing capital assets that, 
because of their long~term nature or because of budgetary 

restraints, cannot be acquired from current or budgeted 
resources. Debt will not be used for operational needs. Debt 
financing can include general obligation bonds, revenue 
bonds, certificates of participation, lease/purchase 

agreements, special obligation bonds, or any other financing 
instrument allowed under North Carolina law. 

b. The County will seek to structure debt and to determine the 
best type of financing for each financing need based on the 
flexibility needed to meet project needs, the timing of the 
project, taxpayer or rate payer equity, and the strnctme that 
will provide the lowest interest cost in the circumstances. 
The following guidelines will be used when structuring debt: 

1) Debt will be amortized on a level principal or level 
principal and interest basis, depending upon the 
specific nature of the financing. 

2) Maximum term of amortization of principal will be 
twenty~five years, twenty years for general 
obligation debt. Average life of outstanding debt will 
not exceed fifteen years. 

3) For general obligation debt, fifty percent of the total 
outstanding debt will be amortized in the first ten 
years of total debt outstanding. 

4) Fixed rate will be the predominant interest rate for 
County issuance. Variable rate debt will be 
considered on a case-by~case basis and will not 
exceed fifteen percent of total outstanding debt of the 
County. Issuance of variable rate debt will be 
undertaken after considering interest rate risk, ability 

13 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
to hedge risk in the annual budget, internal levels of 
fund balance, and other elements of interest rate risk 
management. 

c. Debt financing will be considered in conjunction with the 
County's ClP. Debt financing will also be considered in the 
Board's review of facility plans presented by the Board of 
Education. 

d. Upon Board approval of a capital project and a determination 
that the project will be financed through issuance of debt, 
The Board will increase the property tax rate in an amount 
equivalent to the additional annual operating costs and 
principal and interest payments in the upcoming fiscal year, 
if deemed necessary. 

e. The County will strive to maintain a high level of pay-as
you-go financing for its capital improvements. 

f. Debt Affordability 

1) The net debt of the County, as defined in G.S. t 59-

55, is statutorily limited to eight percent of the 
assessed valuation of the taxable property within the 
County. The County will utilize a self-imposed 
ceiling of 4%. 

2) Total General Fund debt service will not exceed the 
limits imposed by the LGC. As a guide, formulas 
established by the LGC and rating agencies will be 
monitored and appropriately applied by the County. 
Debt service as a percentage of the general fund 
budget will be targeted not to exceed 15%. 

g. The County will seek to structure debt in the best and most 
appropriate manner to be consistent with Asset - Liability 
Management policies. 

h. The County will seek to employ the best and most 
appropriate strategy to respond to a declining interest rate 
environment. That strategy may include, but does not have 

14 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
to be limited to, delaying the planned issuance of fixed rate 

debt, examining the potential for refunding of outstanding 

fixed rate debt, and the issuance of variable rate debt. The 

County will seek to employ the best and most appropriate 

strategy to respond to an increasing interest rate 

environment. That strategy may include, but does not have 

to be limited to, the issuance of variable rate debt (a 

historically lower interest cost), or any other methodology 

deemed appropriate. 

i. The County will monitor the municipal bond market for 

opportunities to obtain interest rate savings by refunding on 
a current or advance basis for outstanding debt. The 

estimation of net present value savings for a traditional fixed 

rate refunding should be, at a minimum, in the range of2.5% 

to 3% of the refunded maturities before a refunding process 

begins. 

j. The County will strive for the highest possible bond ratings 

in order to minimize the County's interest costs. 

k. The County will normally obtain at least two ratings 
(Moody's and Standard & Poor's) for all publicly sold debt 

issues. 

I. While some form of outstanding debt exists, the County will 

strive to have a portion of that debt in the form of general 

obligation debt. 

m. The County will provide annual information updates to each 

of the debt rating agencies. 

n. The County will use the Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report (the "CAFR") as the disclosure document for meeting 

its obligation to provide certain annual financial information 

to the secondary debt market via various information 
repositories. The annual disclosure is a condition of certain 

debt covenants and contracts that are required by SEC Rule 

15c2-12. 

15 



June 7, 2018 Policy Conmilltee 

DRAFT 
5.2 Cash Management and Investment Policy 

5.2.1 Receipts 
a. Cash receipts will be collected as expediently as reasonably 

possible to provide secure handling of incoming cash and to 
move these monies into interest bearing accounts and 
investments. 

b. All incoming funds will be deposited daily as required by 
State law. 

e. The Finance Director is responsible for coordinating at least 

two random or tisk based internal audits of cash receipting 
locations per fiscal year. 

5.2.2 Cash Disbursements - All disbursements will be made in 
accordance with the Expenditure Policy (Section 4.3). Electronic 
payment transactions arc allowed. 

a. The County's objective is to retain monies for investment for 
the longest appropriate period of time. 

b. Disbursements will be made timely in advance of or on the 
agreed-upon contractual date of payment unless earlier 
payment provides greater economic benefit to the County. 

c. Inventories and supplies will be maintained at minimally 
appropriate levels for operations in order to increase cash 

availability for investment purposes. 

d. Dual signatures are required for County checks. Electronic 
signature of checks is approved. 

5.2.3 Investment Policy 

a. Policy 

It is the policy of the County to invest public funds in a 
manner which will provide the highest investment return 
with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash 
flow requirements of the County and conforming to all State 
statutes governing the investment of idle fonds. 

16 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
b. Scope 

This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the 
County except authorized petty cash, trust funds 
administered by the Social Services Director, and debt 
proceeds, which arc accounted for and invested separately 
from pooled cash. The County pools the cash resources of 
its various funds and participating component units into a 
single pool in order to maximize investment opportunities 
and returns. Each fund's and participating component unit's 
portion of total cash and investments is tracked by the 
financial accounting system. 

c. Prndence 

I) The standard of prudence to be used by authorized 
staff shall be the "prndent person" standard and shall 
be applied in the context of managing an overall 
portfolio. Investments shall be made with judgment 
and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which 

persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence 
would exercise in the management of their own 
affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, 
considering the probable safety of their capital as 
well as the probable income to be derived. 

2) Authorized staff acting in accordance with 
procedures and this investment policy and exercising 
due diligence shall be relieved of personal 
responsibility for an individual security's credit risk 
or market price changes, provided deviations from 
expectations are reported in a timely fashion and the 
liquidity and the sale of securities are carried out in 
accordance with the terms of this policy. 

d. Authorized Staff 

1) G.S. l 59-25(a)6 delegates management 
responsibility for the investment program to the 
Finance Director. The Finance Director will 
establish and maintain procedures for the operation 

17 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
of the investment program that are consistent with 

this policy. Such procedures will include delegation 

of authority to persons responsible for investment 

transactions. No person may engage in an 

investment transaction except as provided under the 

terms of this policy and the procedures established 

by the Finance Director. The Finance Director will 

be responsible for all transactions undertaken and 
will establish and maintain a system of controls to 

regulate the activities of subordinates. 

2) In the absence of the Finance Director and those to 

which he or she has delegated investment authority, 

the County Manager or his or her designee is 

authorized to execute investment activities. 

c. Objectives 

The County's objectives in managing the investment 
portfolio, in order of priority, are safety, liquidity, and yield. 

I) Safety 

Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the 
investment program. Investments shall be 
undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the 
preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. To 
best mitigate against credit risk (the risk of loss due 
to the failure of the security issuer) diversification is 
required. To best mitigate against interest rate risk 
(the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely 
affect the market value of a security and that the 
security will have to be liquidated and the loss 
realized) the second objective, adequate liquidity, 
must be met. 

2) Liquidity 

The investment portfolio shall remain sufticiently 
liquid to meet all operating and debt service cash 
requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. 
The portfolio will be structured so that securities 
mature concurrent with cash needs (static liquidity), 
with securities with an active secondary market 

18 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
(dynamic liquidity), 
investments in highly 
mutual fund accounts. 

3) Yield 

and with deposits 
liquid money market 

and 
and 

The investment portfolio shall be designed with the 
objective of attaining a market rate of return 
throughout budgetary, economic and interest rate 
cycles, taking into account investment risk 
constraints and liquidity needs. 

f. Ethics and Conflicts oflnterest 

Officers and employees involved in the investment process 
shall refrain from personal business activity that could 
conflict with the proper execution and management of the 
investment program, or that could impair their ability to 
make impartial decisions. Employees and investment 
officials shall disclose to the County Manager any material 
interests in financial institutions with which they conduct 
business. They shall further disclose any personal financial 
or investment positions that could be related to the 
performance of the investment portfolio. Employees and 
oft1cers shall refrain from undertaking personal investment 
transactions with the same individuals with whom business 
is conducted on behalf of the County. 

g. Authorized Financial Dealers and Financial Institutions 

The Finance Director will maintain a list of financial 
institutions that are authorized to provide investment 
services. Authorized financial institutions will be selected 
by credit worthiness. These may include "primary" dealers 
or regional dealers that qualify under SEC Rule 15C3~1 
(uniform net capital rule). 

h. Any financial institutions and broker dealers that desire to 
become qualified to conduct investment transactions with 
the County must supply the Finance Director with the 
following: 

I) Audited financial statements; 

19 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
2) Proof of National Association of Securities Dealers 

certification; 

3) Proof of State registration; and 

4) Certification of having read the County's Investment 
Policy. 

i. Any previously qualified financial institution that fails to 
comply or is unable to comply with the above items upon 
request will be removed from the list of qualified financial 
institutions. 

j. The Finance Director shall have discretion in determining 
the number of authorized financial institutions and may limit 
that number based upon the practicality of efficiently 
conducting the investment program. The Finance Director 
shall also have the discretion to add or remove authorized 
financial institutions based upon potential or past 
performance. 

1) Internal Control 

The Finance Director is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining an internal control structure 
designed to ensure that the assets of the entity are 
protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The internal 
control structure shall be designed to provide 
reasonable assurance that these objectives are met. 
The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that 
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits 
likely to be derived and that the valuation of costs 
and benefits requires the use of estimates and 
judgments by management. 

2) Collateralization 

Collateralization is required for certificates of 
deposit. North Carolina General Statutes allow the 
State Treasurer and the Local Government 
Commission to prescribe rules to regulate the 
collateralization of public deposits in North Carolina 
banks. These rules are codified in the North Carolina 

20 



June 7, 2018 Polley Committee 

DRAFT 
Administrative Code - Title 20, Chapter 7 (20 
NCAC 7). The Pooling Method of collateralization 
under 20 NCAC 7 allows depositories to use an 
escrow account established ,vith the State Treasurer 
to secure the deposits of all units of local 
government. This method transfers the 
responsibility for monitoring each bank's 
collatcralization and financial condition from the 
County to the State Treasurer. The County will only 
maintain deposits with institutions using the Pooling 
Method of collateralization. 

3) Delivery and Custody 

All investment security transactions entered into by 
the County shall be conducted on a delivery versus 
payment basis. Securities will be held by a third
party custodian designated by the Finance Director 
and each transaction will be evidenced by 
safekeeping receipts and tickets. 

4) Authorized Investments 

A. The County is empowered by North Carolina 

G.S. 159-30(e) to invest in certain types of 

investments. The Board of Commissioners 
approves the use of the following types, the 

list of which is more restrictive than G.S. 

159-30(c): 

I) Obligations of the United States or 

obligations fully guaranteed as to 
both principal and interest by the 

United States. 

2) Obligations of the Federal Financing 

Bank, the Federal Farm Credit Bank, 

the Federal Horne Loan Banks, the 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Corporation, the Federal National 
Mortgage Association, the 

Government National Mortgage 

Association, the Federal Housing 

21 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
Administration, and the United States 

Postal Service. 

3) Obligations of the State of North 
Carolina. 

4) Bonds and notes of any North 
Carolina local government or public 
authority that is rated "AA" or better 
by at least two of the nationally 
recognized ratings services or that 
carries any "AAA insured" rating. 

5) Fully collateralizcd deposits at 
interest or ce1iificates of deposit with 
any bank, savings and loan 
association or trnst company that 
utilizes the Pooling Method of 
collateralization. 

6) Prime quality commercial paper 
bearing the highest rating of at least 
one nationally recognized rating 
service and not bearing a rating below 
the highest by any nationally 
recognized rating service which rates 
the particular obligation. 

7) Bankers' acceptance of a commercial 
bank or its holding company provided 
that the bank or its holding company 
is either (i) incorporated in the State 

of North Carolina or (ii) has 
outstanding publicly held obligations 
bearing the highest rating of at least 
one nationally recognized rating 
service and not bearing a rating below 
the highest by any nationally 
recognized rating service which rates 
the particular obligations. 

22 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 

8) Participating shares in a mutual fund 

for local government investment, 

provided that the investments of the 

fund are limited to those qualifying 
for investment under G.S. 150~30(c) 

and that said fund is certified by the 

LGC. (The only such certified fund is 
the North Carolina Capital 

Management Trust. Prohibited Forms 

of Investments 

I) The use of repurchase agreements in 

the normal investment portfolio (not 

debt proceeds) is prohibited. 

2) The use of collateralized mortgage 

obligations is prohibited. 

3) The use of any type of securities 

lending practices is prohibited. 

5) Diversification 

A. Investments will be diversified by security 

type and by institution. 

B. The total investment in certificates of deposit 
shall not exceed 25% of the County's total 

investment portfolio and the investment in 

certificates of deposit with a single financial 
institution shall not exceed $3,000,000. 

C. The total investment in commercial paper 

shall not exceed 10% of the County's total 

investment portfolio and the investment in 
commercial paper of a single issuer shall not 

exceed $4,000,000. 

D. The total investment in bankers' acceptances 

shall not exceed 10% of the County's total 
investment portfolio and the investment in 

23 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
bankers' acceptances of a single issuer shall 

not exceed $7,000,000. 

E. The Finance Director is responsible for 

monitoring compliance with the above 
restrictions. If a violation occurs, the Finance 

Director shall report such to the County 

Manager and to the Board along with a plan 

to address the violation. 

6) Maximum Maturities 

A To the extent possible, the County will 

attempt to match its investments with 

anticipated cash flow requirements. Beyond 

identified cash flow needs, investments will 

be purchased so that maturities are staggered. 

B. The following maturity limits are set for the 
County's investment portfolio: 

I) No investment will have a maturity 

of more than two years without 

authorization from the County 

Manager. 

2) No more than 10% of the total 
investment portfolio will be invested 

with a maturity longer than one year 

but less than two years. Because the 

total investment portfolio may 

fluctuate due to cash flow needs, 

investments with a maturity up to 
two years may exceed the calculated 

total. If this should occur, 

investments should not be liquidated 

to comply with this policy but future 

investing with maturities up to two 

years shall be avoided until the 

designated level is achieved. 

24 



June 7, 2018 Polic}' Committee 

DRAFT 

7) Selection of Securities 

The Finance Director or his or her designee will 
determine which investments shall be purchased and 
sold and the desired maturity date(s) that are in the 
best interest of the County. The selection of an 
investment will involve the evaluation of, but not 
limited to, the following factors: cash flow 
projections and requirements; current market 
conditions; and overall pmifolio balance and 
makeup. 

8) Responses to Changes in Short Term Interest Rates 

A The County will seek to employ the best and 
most appropriate strategy to respond to a 
declining short-term interest rate 
environment. The strategy may include, but 
does not have to be limited to, purchases of 
callable "cushion" bonds, lengthening of 
maturities in the portfolio, and increases in 
the percentage of ownership of treasury notes 
relative to that of treasury bills. 

B. The County will seek to employ the best and 
most appropriate strategy to respond to an 
increasing short-term interest rate 
environment. That strategy may include, but 
does not have to be limited to, purchases of 
"step-up" securities, shortening of maturities 
in the portfolio, the use of floating rate 
investments, and increases in the percentage 
of ownership of treasury bills relative to that 
of treasury notes. 

9) Performance Standards 

A. The investment portfolio will be managed in 
accordance with the parameters specified 
within this policy. The investment portfolio 
will strive to obtain a market average rate of 

25 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
return within the constraints of the county's 
investment risk profile and cash flow needs. 

B. The performance benchmarks for the 
performance of the portfolio will be rates of 
return on 90-day commercial paper and on 
three-year treasury notes. 

I 0) Active Trading of Securities 

It is the County's intent, at the time of purchase, to 
hold all investments until maturity to ensure the 
return of all invested principal. However, if 
economic or market conditions change making it in 
the County's best interest to sell or to trade a security 
before maturity, that action may be taken. 

11) Pooled Cash and Allocation of Interest Income 

All monies earned and collected from investments 
other than bond proceeds will be allocated monthly 
to the various participating funds and component 
units based upon the average cash balance of each 
fund and component unit as a percentage of the total 
pooled portfolio. Earnings on bond proceeds will be 
directly credited to the same proceeds. 

12) Markel to Market 

A report of the market value of the portfolio will be 
generated annually by the Finance Director. The 
Finance Director will use the reports to review the 
investment portfolio in terms of value and price 
volatility, as well as for compliance with GASB 
Statement #31. 

6.0 ACCOUNTING, AUDITING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING POLICIES 

6.1 General Policy 

6.1. I The County will maintain accounting systems in compliance with 
the North Carolina Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control 
Act. The County will maintain accounting systems that enable the 

26 



June 7, 2018 Policy Conunitk~ 

DRAFT 
preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 
a. The basis of accounting within governmental funds will be 

modified accrual. 

b. The basis for accounting within all Enterprise and Internal 
Service Funds will be the accrual basis. 

6.1.2 Financial systems will be maintained to enable the continuous 
monitoring of revenues and expenditures or expenses with monthly 
reports provided to the County Manager and the Finance Director. 
Financial summaries will be provided to the Finance Committee at 
their regularly scheduled meetings. Monthly expenditure/expense 
reports will be provided to each director and department head for 
their functional area and online, real time, view only, access to the 
financial system will be made available to department heads and 
other staff as much as practical and its use encouraged. On a 
periodic basis an interim financial update will be provided to the 
Board of County Commissioners. 

6.1.3 The County will place emphasis on maintenance of an accounting 
system which provides strong internal budgetary and financial 
controls designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance 
regarding both the safeguarding of assets against loss from 
unauthorized use or disposition and the reliability of financial 
records for preparing financial statements and reports, as well as the 
accountability of assets. 

6. l.4 An annual audit will be performed by an independent certified 
public accounting firm that will issue an opinion on the annual 

financial statements as required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act 

6.1.5 The County will solicit proposals from qualified independent 
certified public accounting firms for audil services. The principal 
factor in the audit procurement process will be the auditor's ability 
to perform a quality audit. The County will enter into a multiyear 
agreement ,vith the selected firm. Firms arc not barred from 
consecutive contract awards. 

27 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
6.1.6 The Finance Committee of the Board will serve as the standing audit 

committee. The committee will oversee the independent audit of the 
county's financial statements, from the selection of the auditor to the 
resolution of any audit findings. A staff report concerning the 
annual audit will be presented to the Committee and the Board of 
County Commissioners. 

6.1.7 The Finance Department/Internal Auditor will conduct some form 
of internal audit procedures at least one time per year, specifically 

focusing upon cash receipts procedures. 

6.1.8 The County will prepare a CAFR. The CAFR will be prepared in 
compliance with established criteria to obtain the Government 
Finance Officers Association's Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Repmiing and will be submitted to that 
award program each year. 

6.1.9 Full and complete disclosure will be provided in all regulatory 

reports, financial statements and debt offering statements. 

6.1.10 The County will use the CAFR as the disclosure document for 
meeting its obligation to provide certain annual financial 
information to the secondary debt market via various information 
repositories. The annual disclosure is a condition of certain debt 
covenants and contracts that are required by SEC Rule 15c2-12. 

6.1.11 The Finance Department will maintain a Financial Procedures 
Manual as a central reference point and handbook for all financial, 
accounting and recording procedures. 

6.1.12 The Information Technology Department will establish, document 
and maintain a Computer Disaster Recovel)' Plan and will provide 
for the daily backup of data and the offsite storage of the same. 

7.0 SWAPPOLICY 

Use of synthetic debt transactions by use of swaps is permitted by Local Government 
Commission policy for selected counties and cities. Currently the County does not view 
synthetic debt transactions as consistent with its overall financial policies. The County will 
continue to review the potential for synthetic debt transactions using swaps and will adopt 
a formal swap policy to the extent needed in the future. 

28 



June 7, 2018 Policy C'ommittec 

DRAFT 
***** 

Vicki Evans, Finance Director, reviewed the background information, recommendation 
and information as recorded above. 

Ms. Evans stated the County has been engaging in electronic transactions for many years. 
Ms. Evans fm1her stated the policy change will reflect the County's current practice and in 
order to be compliant with the mies there needs to be a modification of the County's 
financial policies and the adoption of a resolution authorizing the County to engage in 
electronic transactions without atlixing a prewaudit certificate. 

Commissioner Boose stated he has so many different questions and needs more 
information so he is going to vote to not approve this item at the committee meeting. 
Commissioner Boose stated he will meet with staff to answer his questions so he can vote 
again at the Board of Commissioners meeting. 

MOTION: 

SECOND: 
VOTE: 

Commissioner Lancaster moved to recommend to the full board approval 
of the revised financial policies and the resolution authorizing the County 
to engage in electronic payments as defined by G.S. I 59w28. 
Commissioner Evans 
PASSED (Voting in favor: Commissioner Lancaster and Commissioner 
Evans; Voting in opposition: Commissioner Boose) 

Commissioner Lancaster, Chairman of the Policy Committee asked that the Committee 
consider Item 5. next because of residents of Mt. Vemon Estates who were in attendance. 

5. CONSIDERATION OF REQUEST FROM RESIDENTS OF MT. VERNON 
ESTATES TO PROCEED \VITI I AW ATERSHED IMPROVEMENT 

BACKGROUND: 
The owners of 16 properties fronting on the lake at Mt. Vernon Estates have submitted a 
petition requesting the County to repair the lake's dam through the special assessment 
process as a watershed improvement project. The dam was breached by Hurricane 
Matthew. Based on the county attorney's review of the G!S maps, there appear to be 25 
properties fronting on the lake. The petitioners obtained a project cost estimate of the dam 
repair prepared by C. Douglas Jewell, P.E. I-lis estimate of the cost is $558,630. The 
petitioner also obtained an engineering report from Mr. Jewell in which he certifies that 
the restoration of the lake will be a significant benefit to the community and an 
enhancement to the surrounding watershed and its environment. 

The statutes in Chapter 139 define what constitutes a watershed improvement project and 
a watershed improvement work. A dam is an impoundment stmcture that can be used for 
the statutorily authorized watershed purposes. Although the types of watershed 
improvement projects authorized by the special assessment statutes are not limited to those 
authorized by Chapter 139, the county attorney advises to follow the requirements of 

29 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
Chapter 139 because this is the only guidance that is available as to how these projects 
should be undertaken. One of those requirements is that the work plan be submitted to the 
Soil and Water Conservation Commission for review and approval or disapproval. 

The engineering rep011 provided by the petitioners docs not fully address the area of the 
watershed being improved and the parcels of land that are benefiting from this 
improvement. Additional engineering will be required to obtain that information. Under 
the newly adopted special assessments policy, the county may contract for that engineering 
or require the petitioners to obtain it. It is unlikely that the lakefront properties arc the only 
parcels in this watershed that will be benefited. It will also be necessary for the county to 
acquire permanent rights in the land on which the dam is located to construct the project 
and maintain it. 

RECOMMENDATION/PROPOSED ACTION: 
The county attorney advises that before the County unde11akes this project, the engineering 
be done to establish all the properties that will benefit in this watershed and whether the 
benefits will accrue uniformly to differing classes of property. Also, it must be determined 
that the County can obtain sufficient rights in the land on which the dam is located to 
construct the project and maintain it in the future. 

***** 
Rick Moorefield, County Attorney, reviewed the background information and 
recommendation as recorded above. Questions and discussion followed. 

Commissioner Council stated she docs not feel the County is in the position to take on this 
project as the County is constantly receiving requests. 

MOTION: 

SECOND: 
VOTE: 

Commissioner Lancaster moved to recommend to the full board approval 
of the consideration of the request from the residents of the Mt. Vernon 
Estates to proceed with the watershed improvement project, subject to the 
Petitioners providing the additional engineering information recommended 
by the County Attorney and the work plan being submitted to the Soil and 
Water Conservation Commission for approval. 
Commissioner Boose 
PASSED (Voting in favor: Commissioner Lancaster and Commissioner 
Boose; Voting in opposition: Commissioner Evans) 

Commissioner Evans stated he would like to receive further information before he votes 
for this issue because he still is not clear who would pay for the engineering firm. Mr. 
Moorefield responded the petitioners would be responsible to provide the additional 
engineering work, but if this moves forward it would be a County project. 

4. CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENT TO COUNTY PURCHASING POLICY 
(I) BY INCORPORATING FEDERAL UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

30 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
PROCUREMENT STANDARDS (2) EXCEPTING THE SHERIFF'S OFFICE 
FROM THE PURCHASING POLICY 

BACKGROUND: 
The Federal Office of Budget and Management (0MB) has updated its Uniform Guidance 
Procurement Standards. ·111e County must comply with these standards beginning July I, 
2018. The standards apply to the County when expending federal financial assistance 
funds including United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) loans and grants, 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds, Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) Public Assistance disaster relief grants, and other programs, either 
directly funded or reimbursement driven. 

The Local Government Commission (LGC) and the University of North Carnlina School 
of Government (UNC-SOG) have provided guidance to local governments throughout the 
state in regard to the implementation of the Uniform Guidance. Locally, the County has 
taken the following steps toward timely implementation: 

• Identified impact by determining applicable departments within the County 
• Key staff of the applicable departments (and those who are responsible for 

sub-recipient funding) attended the April 24, 2018 training webinar hosted 
by legal and financial professionals from the LGC and UNC-SOG 

• Reviewed current policies to ensure compliance with the standards of 
conduct, conflicts of interest, and gift bans in accordance Uniform Guidance 

o The Code of Ethics (Section 501) of the Personnel Ordinance 
adopted by the Board on June 20, 2016 covers these items per Legal 

• Revised (currently in draft form) the County's Purchasing Policy to 
incorporate Uniform Guidance policy language as provided by the UNC
SOG 

RECOMMENDATION/PROPOSED ACTION: 
Management recommends the Policy Committee approve and forward to the Board of 
Commissioners the following action: 

Approve the revised Purchasing Policy which now incoqwratcs the Federal Uniform 
Guidance Procurement Standards. 

Cumberland County 
Section I - Board Approved Policies 

Subsection 3: Cumberland County Financial/ Audit 
Policy No. 3-3: Purchasing Policy (3.l Local Preference Policy) 

31 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
The fo llowing policy was originally adopted on June 21, 1999 by the Board of 
Commissioners. This policy was amended on February 25, 2002, November 1, 2010r mHI 
June 5, 2017, nnd June 18, 2018 by the Board of Commissioners. 

1.0 PURPOSE 

This manual has been developed as a resource for Cumberland County employees 
to follow when procuring goods and services on behalf of the County. The policy 
and procedures provided in this manual were established lo ensure the fair and 
equitable treatment of all persons involved in public purchasing, to maximize the 
purchasing value of public funds in procurement, and to provide safeguards for 
maintaining a procurement system of quality and integrity, in accordance with 
North Carolina General Statutes (N.C.G.S). 

2.0 SCOPE 

This policy applies to all County employees conducting purchases on behalf of 
Cumberland County. with the exception of the Office of the Sheriff and its 
employees. wh iclJ shall conduct its O\\ n program and Rrncctlures for purchasing,., 

3.0 POLICY 

3.1 Local Preference Policy 

Contracts for the provision of services in any amount and all contracts for the 
purchase of apparatus, materials, supplies and equipment in which the aggregate 
purchase price in any single contract is less than $30,000 shall be awarded to local 
vendors or suppliers, to the greatest extent possible, in accordance with the further 
conditions set out herein. 

Local vendors or suppliers shall be those who demonstrate that they pay business 
personal or real property taxes and arc either self-employed residents of 
Cumberland County or employ at least one resident of Cumberland County as an 
employee or officer of the contracting business entity. 

3.2 Purclrnsc Orders 

All services and purchases in amounts of $ 1,000 and more must have a purchase 
order prior to the purchase being made or the services being rendered. Al I purchases 
of goods in an amount greater than $500 requires a document (invoice, quote, 
proposal, etc.) with sale details. 

3.3 Purchases & Services 

32 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
Less than 1,000 
Department heads shall authorize services or purchases of apparatus, supplies, 
materials or equipment up to $999.99 without a purchase order if sunicient funds 
are budgeted and available within the department budget. Prior to the purchase 
depa1tments must ensure there is an appropriation authorizing the obligation and 
that sufficient funds will remain in the appropriation to pay the amounts that are 
expected to come due in the fiscal year in which the obligation is incurred. 

$1,000-$29,999.99 
Department heads shall solicit proposals for services or purchases of apparatus, 
supplies, materials or equipment when the estimated cost is between $1,000 -
$29,999.99. County Purchasing will review the purchase upon receipt ofrequisition 
to ensure compliance with County policies. County Purchasing may elect to solicit 
additional proposals on a random basis or if experience has revealed that a more 
favorable price is available. 
3.4 Purchases of apparatus, supplies, materials, or equipment 

$30,000 - $89,999.99 
Informal bids are required for any purchase of apparatus, supplies, materials, or 
equipment that requires an expenditure of $30,000 - $89,999.99, except for 
purchases that qualify under the Competitive Bidding Exceptions as per N.C.G.S 
143-I29(e). Departments shall submit specifications to County Purchasing for 
purchases in this category. 

$90,000 and Above 
Formal bids are required for any purchase of apparatus, supplies, materials, or 
equipment in amounts of$90,000 or more, with exception of purchases that qualify 
under the Competitive Bidding Exceptions as per N.C.G.S 143-129(e). 
Departments shall submit specifications to County Purchasing for purchases in this 
category. The County Manager will must approve bid awards in amounts between 
$90,000 - $99,999.99. The Board of County Commissioners must approve bid 
awards in amounts of $100,000 or greater. 

3.5 Purchase of Services 

$30,000 and Above 
An Informal RFP process is required for services estimated to cost $30,000 or 
more. County Purchasing will review the proposal upon receipt of requisition to 
ensure compliance with county policies. County Purchasing may elect to solicit 
additional proposals on a random basis or if experience has revealed that a more 
favorable price is available. 

3.6 Procurement Cards 

The procurement card program was established to provide a more rapid turnaround 
of requisitions for low dollar value goods, and to reduce paperwork and handling 
costs. Procurement cardholders may initiate transactions in person, or by 

33 



June 7, 20 18 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
telephone, within the established limits of these procedures. Department heads may 
designate individuals to receive procurement cards. Procurement cardholders must 
attend a class in County Purchasing addressing the guidelines involved in the 
responsibility associated with the card. To ensure pre-audit requirement 
compliance, funds for each department 's estimated procurement card charges shall 
be encumbered at the beginning of each fi scal year. 

3.7 Contracts 

All contracts for expenditures, in amounts of $50,000 or more require County 
Manager signature. Contracts resulting from a formal bid process for expenditures 
in amounts of$ I 00,000 or more require Chairman to the Board of Commissioners 
signature, after Board approval. Contracts with a total amount less than $50,000 
may be signed by the Department head. 

These signature requirements pertain to all contracts in which the county is 
obligated to expend funds, even if the funds have been approved by the Board of 
Commissioners in the original budget. 

Contracts funded with federal grant or loan funds must he procured in a manner 
that conforms with all applicable Federal laws. policies. and standards. including 
those under the Un iform Guidance (2 C.F.R. Part 200). Sec the Ad(kndum 
following section 4.0 orthis policy for the Uniform Guidance Procurement Policy. 

3.8 Genewil-Slot11klFcclcral and State Law Compliance 

Federal law and North Carolina general statues allow local policy to be more 
restrictivc---t-l-la1i--general-sl11t~1le. When comparing federal. state. and local 
procun:ment n:guirements to implement federal programs or grants. the most 
restrict ive rcguin:mcnt shall be applied. This policy is more restrictive regarding 
bid requirements of services and dollar thresholds for contractual signaturcsJ!! 
comparison to state statute req uirements. Periodically, legislation results in 
changes to law and/or general statutes. This policy shall be automatically updated 
upon changes in general statutes referenced within this policy, except for bid 
requirements of services and dollar thresholds for contractual .s ignatures. 

4.0 IirlPLEMENTATION 

• .. .. .. Formatted: Normal, Justified, Indent: Left : 0.5" 

The Finance Director is responsible for implementing and enforcing this Policy; 
0.'<(.'C!>HIS--il--Ml'MiHs-t&-ltle--Gi:11ee ol'..t-tt~l-iffifHmct.ft-s-etnttl~ S; and to interpret 
it consistent with its spirit and intent, fiscal prudence and accountability. The 
Finance Director is authorized to prescribe additional administrative instrnctions 
for implementing the above policy. 'I he Finance 011iecr shall not be rc,ponsibk 
for implementing, any programs or procedures for purchasing implemented hv the 
Shcril1's Oflicc. 

34 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

I. 

II. 

DRAFT 

ADDENDUI\I 

Uniform Guidance Procurement Policy for North Carolina Local 
Governments 

Purpose • - - · · · · { Formatted: Space After: 10 pt 

The purpose or th is Policy is lo estab li sh guidelines that meet nr exceed the< ·· ····{ Formatted: Justified, Space After: 10 pt 

procurement requ irements for purchases of goods (apparatus. supplies. materials. 
and equipment). services. and conslrnclion or repair pro jects when federal funds 
arc being used in whole or in part lo pay for the cost of the contract. 

Policy 

/\. Application of Policy. This policy applies to contracts for purchases. services. 
and construction or repair work ti111dcd with federal financial assistance (direct 
or reimbursed). The requirements of this Policy also applv to any subrccipient 

of the funds. 

All federall y fonded projects. loans. grants. and sub-grants. whether funded in•-.. 
part or \\'holly, are subject lo the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost ·-. 
Princi ples, and Audit Rcnuirements for federnl awards (Uniform Guidance) 
codified at 2 c.r .R. Pnrl 200 unless otherwise directed in writing by the federal 
agency or state pass-through agency that awarded the funds. 

11. Compliance with Federal Law. /\ II procurement acti vities involving the 
~>enditure of fcdernl funds must be condueled in compliance with the 
Procurement Standards codified in 2 C.F.R. § 200.3 17 through § 200-326 

unless otherwise directed in writing by the federal agency or stale pass-through 
agency that awarded the funds. Cumberland County will fo llow all applicable 
local. slate. and federal procurement requirements when expending feclt:ral 
funds. Should the County have more stringent rcguiremcnts. the most 
restrict ive requ irement shall app ly so long as il is consistent with state and 

fcclt:ral law. 

C. Contract Award . /\II contracts shall be awarded only to the lowest respons ive 
responsible bidder possessing the ability lo perform successfu lly under the 

terms and conditions oflhe contract. 

D. No Evasion. No contract may be divided to bring the cost under bid thresholds 
or lo evade any requirements under this Policy or slate and federal law. 

35 

Formatted: Indent: Left: o·•, Flrst line: O", Space After: 10 
pt, Tab stops: 0.5", Lert 

Formatted: llormal, Indent: Left: 0.75", Don't add space 
between paragraphs or the same style, llo bul!ets or 
numbering 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.75", Space After: 10 pt 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style, Don't adjust space between Latin and As!an text, 
Don't adjust space between As!an text and numbers 

Formatted: Normal, Space After: 10 pt, Don't add space 
between paragraphs of the same style 



June 7, 2018 Policy Comminee 

DRAFT 
• ··· ·· · { Formatted: Space After: 10 pt 

Ill . 

E. Contract Requi rements. /\II contracts paid for in whole or in part with ledcral 
fu nds shall be in wri tine. The written contract must include or inconmrate by 
reference the provisions required under 2 C.F.R § 200.326 and as provided for 
under 2 C.F.R. Part 200. Appendix II . 

F. Contractors' Conflict of Interest. Designers. suppliers, and contractors that 
assist in the development or dralling of specifications, requirements. statements 
of work. invitation for bids or requests fo r proposals shall be excluded fro111 
competing for such rcquirc111cnts. 

G. Approvnl nncl l\lodification. The administrat ive procedures contained in this 
Policy arc administrative and may be changed as necessary at the staff level to 
comply with state and federal law. 

General Procurement Standards and Proccdnr<'s: 

Either the Purchasing Department or the Requesting Department shall procure all 
contracts in accordance with the requirements of this Section of the Policy. 

A. Necessity. Purchases 111ust be necessary to perfor111 the scope of work and 
Jllust avoid acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative items. The Purchasing 
Dcparl lllcnt and/or the Requesti ng Dcpartlllcnt should check with the federal 
2!!ffilus property agency prior to buying new items when feasible and less 
expensive. Strategic sourcing should be considered with other depart111ents 
and/or agencies who have s imilar needs to consolidate procurelllents and 
services to obtain heller pricing. 

13. Clrar Specifications. All solicitations 111ust incorporate a clear and accurate 
description of the technical n:guiremcnts for the materials. products. or 
services to be procured, and shall include all other requirements which bidders 
111usl fu llill and nil other factors to be used in evaluating bids or proposals. 
Technical rcguin:ments must not contain features that restrict competition. 

C. Notice of Federal Fun ding. /\II bid solicitations must acknowledge the use 
of federal funding for the contract. In add ition. all prospective bidders or 
offerors must acknowledge that fundin g is contingent upon compliance wi th 
all terms and condit ions of the funding award. 

D. Compliance by Contractors. /\II sol icitations shall inform prospect ive 
cont ractors that they must comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, 
execut ive orders. and terms and conditions orthe funding award. 

36 

Formatted: llormal, flo bullets or numbering 

Formatted: Normal, !lo bullets or numbering 

Formatted: Normal, No bullets or numbering 

Formatted: Space After: 10 pt 

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0.81 ", Don't add space 
between paragraphs or the same sty'.e, llo bul!ets or 
numbering 

Formatted: Normal, Space After: 10 pt, Don't add space 
between paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: O' , First line: O', Don't adjust 
space between Latin and As'an text, Don"t adjust space 
between As!an text and numbers 



June 7, 20 18 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 

E. Fixed Price. Solicitations must stale that bidders shall submit bids on a fixed 
price basis and that the contract shall be awarded on this basis unless otherwise 
provided for in this Policy. Cost plus percentage of cost contracts arc 
prohibited. Time and materials contracts are prohibited in most circu rnslanccs. 
Time and materials contracts will not be used unless no other form or contract 
is suitable and the contract includes a "Not to Exceed" amount. J\ time and 
materials contract shall not be awarded without express written permission of 
the federal agency or state pass-through agency that awarded the funds. 

F. Use of Brand Na mes. When possible, performance or functional 
speci fications are preferred to allow for more competition leaving the 
determination of how the reach the requi red result to the contractor. Brand 
names may be used only when it is impractical or uneconomical lo write a clear 
and accurate description ol'the requircment(s). When a brand name is listed, it 
is used as reference only and "or equal" must be included in the description. 

G. Lease versus Pu rc hase. Under certain circumstances, it mav be necessary to 

Formatted: rlormal, Space After: 10 pt, Don't add space 
between paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: rlormal, Space After: 10 pt, Don't add space 
bet\'/een paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: rlormal, Space After: 10 pt, Don't add space 
between paragraphs of the same style 

perform an analysis oflease versus purchase alternatives to determine the most 
economical approach, ______ _______ ------ ---------- ______ __ ------ --- -···-···--·----· .. ···-- __ ... ··· { Formatted: Font: Font color: Dark Gray, 

• .. ··---·---···----- ••... --- - - --··· ... ··-········· ...... ____ __ ____ .....• .. .. ···--- - -- . ····· - ----·· · · . .. •. .. .• •• "_:.·-·::· Formatted: Font color: Dark Gray 
H. Divid ing Cont ract for l\linority/Womcn Business Enten1rises (1\1/\VBE) ·· Formatted: Normal, No bullets or numbering 

Partici pation. If economically feasible. procurements may be divided into 
smaller components to allow maximum participat ion or small and minority 
businesses and women business enterprises. The procurement cannot be 
divided lo bring the cost under bid th resholds or to evade any requirements 
under th is Policy. 

I. D0cn111 cnt ntion. Documentation must be maintained by the Purchasing 
Dcpa11111cnt and/or the Requesting Dcpm1ment detai ling the history of all 
procun:ments. The documentation should include the procurement method 
used, contract type. bnsis for contractor selection. price, sources solicited, 
public notices. cost analysis, bid documents, addenda. mrn:ndmcnts, 
contractor's responsiveness, not ice of award, copies of not ices to unsuccessful 
bidders or offt:rors, record or protests or disputes, bond documents, notice to 
proceed, purchase order, and contract. All documentation relating to the award 
or any contract must be made available to the granting agency upon request. 

-.... - - - - - - - - ----- ... -- .. ---- -- -... -. .. .... - - - - - - -- ---.. ----- -- .. - --.. . - - - - -~--.. 
J. Cost Estimate. For all procuremcnts costini:t S 150,000 or more, the 

l'urchasing___Q_\,_partmcnt and/or Request ing Department shall develop an 
estimate orthc cost of the procurement prior to solici ting bids. Cost estimates 

37 

Formatted: llormal, Space After: 10 pt, Don't add space 
between paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Font color: Dark Gray 

Formatted: llormal, tlo bullets or numbering 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

IV. 

DRAFT 
may be developed by reviewing prior contract costs. on line review or similar 
products or services. or other means by which a good faith cosl estimate may 
be obtained. Cost estimates for construction and repair contracts may be 

developed by the pro ject designer. 

K. Contract Req uirements. The Requesting Department must prepare a wrillcn 
contract incorporating the provisions ref'crcncecl in Sect ion 11.C of this Policy. 

L. Dcbar 111 cnt. No contract shall be awarded to n contractor included on the 

federally debarred bidder's list. 

l\ l. Contractor O\•ersight. The Requesting Department receiving the federal 
fu nding must mninluin oversight or the contract to ensure that contractor is 
performing in accordance with the contract terms. conditions. and 

speci{ications. 

N. Open Co111 pctition. Solicitations shall be prepared in a way lo be foir and 
provide open competition. The procurement process shall not restrict 
competition by imposing unreasonable requirements on bidders. including but 
not limited to unnecessary supplier experience. excessive or unnecessan' 
bonding. specifying a brand name without allowing for ' ·or eqtial" products. or 

Formatted: llormal, Space Aller: 10 pt, Don't add space 
between paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Uormal, Space Aller: 10 pt, Don't add space 
between paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: llormal, Space Aner: 10 pt, Don't add space 
between paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Normal, Space After: 10 pt, Don't add space 
between paragraphs of the same style 

other unnecessary rcquin:menls that have the effect or restricting competition. 
• · ·· · · · { Formatted: Space Aller: 10 pt 

0 . Geographic Preference. No cont ract shall be awarded on the basis of a 

geographic prefcrcnce.L .. .... .. ... ....... . . ...... .. .......... ... ...................... . ..... -----{>F=o"'r"'m"'a"'tl=ed=:=F~on"'l=: Bo= !d= = = =========< 

Specific Procurement Procedu res 

Either the Purchasing Department or the Requesting Department shall solicit bids 
in accordance with the requirements under this Section oflhe Pol icy based on the type 
and cost of the contract. 

A. Service Contracts except for J\rchitcclural/Enginccring (N E) professional 
services nml Purchase Cont racts costing less than $3,500 shall be procured 
using the Uni form Guidance "micro-purchase'' procedure (2 C.F.R. § 

200.320(n)) as fo llows: 
I. The contract may be awarded without soliciti ng pricing or bids ir the price 

orthe goods or services is considered to be fai r and reasonable. 
2. To the extent practicable. purchases must be distributed among qunlificd 

suppliers. 

38 

Formatted: Justified, Don't adjust space between Latin and 
Asian text, Don't adjust space between Asian text and 
numbers 

Formatted: Space Mer: 10 pt 

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Lelt: 1.06", Don't add space 
between paragraphs of the same style, llo bullets or 
numbering 



Jm1e 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
ll. Service Contracts (except for NE profess ional services) and Purchase 

Contracts cos ting $3,500 up to S90,000 shall be procured using thc' Un ironn 
Guidance ·'small purchase'' procedure (2 c.r.R. § 200.320(b)) as fo llows: 
l . Obtain price or rate quotes from an "adequate number" ofqualificd sources 

(a federal grnntor agency might issue guidance interpret ing "adequate 
number:· so the Requesting Department should n~vicw the terms and 
conditions of the grant award documents to confirm whether specific 
guidance has been issued). 

2. Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/Wrrn vendors and 
.fil!PJlliers as required under 2 c. r .R. § 200.321. 

3. Cost or price analysis is not required prior to soliciting bids. 
4. /\ward the contract on a fixed-price basis (a not-to-exceed basis is 

permissible for serv ice contracts when~ obtain ing a fi xed price is not 

feasible). 
5. Award the contract to the lowest responsive. responsible bidder. 

C. Service Contracts (except fo r A/E professional services) and Purchase 

Contracts costi ng $90,000 and above shall be procured using a combi nation 
of the most restrictive req uirements of the Uniform Guidance "scaled bid" 
procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(c)) and state formal bidding procedures (G.S. 

143- 129) as fo llows: 
l . Cost or price analysis is required prior to solicitin(!, bids. 
2. Complete specifications or purchase description must be made ,wailable to 

all bidders. 
) . The bid must be fonnally advert ised in a newspaper of general circulation 

for at least seven fu ll days between the elate or the advertisement and the 
date of the public bid opening. Electron ic-only aclvcrtis in(!, must be 
authori zed by the governing hoard. The advertisement must state the date. 
time. and location of the public bid opening. indicate where specificat ions 
may be obtained. and reserve to the govern ing board the right to reject uny 
or all bids only for "sound documented reasons." 

4. Take aflirmati vc steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and 
suppliers as required under 2 C.F.R. § 200.32 1. 

5. Open bids al the public bid open ing on the date. time. and at the location 
noticed in the public advertisement. /\ II bids must be submilted sealed. /\ 
minimum of2 bids must be received in order to open all bids. 

6. Award the contract to the lowest responsive. responsible bidder on a fi xed
price basis. Govern ing board approval is requin:d for pun;hasc contracts 
un less the govern ing board has delegated award authority to an imlividual 
ofl1cial or employee. /\ny and all bids may be rejected only for ··so1111d 
documented reasons." 

39 

Formatted: llormal, Indent : Left: 1.06", Don't add space 
between paragraphs or the same style, tlo bullets or 
numbering 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 

D. Service Contracts (except for A/E prokssional services) costing $ 150,000 
and above may be procured using the Uni form Guidance '·con11>elitive 
µ,roposnl'' procedure (2 c .r .R. § 200.320(d)) when the "scaled bid" procedure 
is not appropriate for the particular type of service being sought. The 
procedures arc as fo llows: 
I. A l{eguest for Proposals {llFI') must be publicly advertised. Formal 

advertisement in a newspaper is not reguircd so long as the method of 
advcrlisemcnt will solicit proposals from an ;<adequate number'' of 

gualificd firms. 
2. Take affirmative steps to solicit price guotcs from M/\Vl3E vendors and 

suppliers as provided under 2 C.r .R. § 200.32 1. 
3. Identify evaluation criteria and relative impo11ance of each cri teria (criteria 

weight) in the RPP. 
4. Consider all responses to the JJublicized RFP lo the maximum extent 

practical. 
5. Must have a wri tten method for conducting technical evaluations of 

proposals and sclecline. the winning firm. 
6. A ward the contrac t to the responsible fi rm with most advantageous 

proposal laking into accoun t price and other factors identified in lhc RFP. 
Govern ing board approval is nol rcguired. 

7. Award the cont ract on a fixed-price or cost-reimbursement basis. 

E. Constrnction and repa ir contrncts cost ing less than $3,500 shall be 
procured using the Uni form Guidance "micro-purchase" procedure (2 c .r .R. 

§ 200.320(a)) as fo llows: 

F. 

I. The contract may be awarded without sol ici ting pricing or bids iflhc price 
of the goods or services is considered to be fa ir and reasonable. 

2. To the cxh:nt practi~able, contracts must be distribu ted among gualificd 
suppliers. 

Construction ancl rcnn ir conlrncls cost ing $3,500 up to S 150,000 shall be 
nrocun:-d using the Uni form Guidance "small purd iasc" procedure (2 C.F.R. § 

200.320(b)) as follows: 
I. Ohtain price or rate 911oles from an "adequate num ber" ot'gualified sources 

(a ledcral grantor agency might issue guidance interpreting "adequate 
number.'· so the rcguesting department should review the tenns and 
cond itions or the grant award documents to confirm whether snccifie 
guidance has been issued). 

2. Take ani rmati vc steps lo solicit price guotcs from M/ \VBE vendors and 
;il!Jlpliers as ri:quired under 2 C.F.R. § 200.32 1. 

40 

Formatted: llocmal, Indent: Left: 1.06", Don't add space 
between paragraphs of the same style, 110 bullets oc 
numbering 

Fornrntted: llocmal, Indent: Left: J.06", Don't add space 
between paragraphs of the same style, llo bul!ets or 
numbering 

Formatted: llormal, Indent: Left: 1.06", Don't add space 
between paragraphs of the same style, 110 bullets 0< 

numbering 



June 7, 20 18 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
3. Cost or price analysis is not rcnuircd prior to soliciting bids. althou!!h price 

cst imat..:s may be provided by the project desii:rner. 
4. Award the contract 011 a lixcd-pricc or not-to-exceed basis. 
5. Award the contract to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder. 

Governing board approval is not required. 
• · -- - - - { Formatted: Space After: 10 pt 

G. Constrnction and repair contracts costing $150,000 up to $500,000 shall 
~>rocurcd using the Uniform Guidance '"scaled bid" procedure (2 C.f.R. § 

200.320(c)) as follows: 
I . Cost or price analysis is required prior to solicit ing bids (this cost est imate 

may be provided by the project designer). 
2. Complete spccilications must be made available to all bidders. 
3. Publicly advertise the bid solicitation for a period or time sullicicnt to give 

bidders notice or opportunity to submit bids (formal advert isement in a 
newspaper is not required so long as other means of advertising 11;ill 

provide sunicient notice of the opportunity to bid). The advertisement 
must state the date, time. and location or the public bid ope11in12. and 
indicate where spcei lications may be obtained. 

4. Take aninnative steps to solicit price quotes from tvl/\\'BE vendors and 
suppliers as provided under 2 C.f.R. § 200.32 1. 

5. Open the bids at the public bid opening on the date. time, and at the locat ion 
noticed in the public advertisement. All bids must be submitted sealed. A 
minimum of2 bids must be received in order to open all bids. 

6. A 5% bid bond is required of all bidders. Performance and payment bonds 
of I 00% oft he contract price is required of the winning bidder. 

7. Award the contract on n lirm lixcd-pricc basis. 
8. /\ward the contract to the lowest responsi,·e. responsible bidder. Governing. 

board amiroval is not required. Anv and all bids may be rejected only for 
"sound documented reasons.'" 

II. Constrncti on and rcuair contracts costing S500,000 and above shall be 

procured using a combination of the most restrictive requirements or the 
Uniform Guidance "scaled bid'' procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(c)) and state 
formal bidd ing procedures (Ci.S. 143-1 29) as fo llows: 
I . Cost or price analysis is required prior lo soliciting bids {this cost estimate 

should be provided by the pro ject desi12ncr). 
2. Complete specifications must be mach: available to all bickkrs. 
3. formal ly advertise the bid in a newspaper of general circulat ion for at least 

seven full days between the date of the advertisement and the dale of the 
public bid opening. Ekctrouie-only advertising must be authorized by the 

41 

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 1.06', Don't add space 
between paragraphs of the same style, flo bullets or 
numbering 



June 7, 20 18 Policy Commillcc 

DRAFT 
govem ing board. The advertisement musl slalc lhc dale. time, and localion 
of lhe publ ic bid opening. indicale where spccilicalions may be obtained, 
and reserve lo lhe govern ing hoard lhe righl lo rcjecl any or all bids only 
for "sound documenlcd reasons." 

4. Take ani rmal ivc steps lo sol icil price ouolcs from M/ \VBE vendors and 
suppliers as provided under 2 C.F.ll. § 200.32 1. 

5. Open lhc bids al lhc public bid opening on lhc dale. lime, and al lhc local ion 
noliccd in lhc public advertisement. All bids must be submillcd scaled and 
in paper form. A minimum of3 bids must be n:ccivcd in order to open nil 
bids. 

6. A 5% bid bond is rcguired of all bidders (a bid lhat docs nol include a bid 
bond cannol be counted toward lhc 3-bid minimum rcouircmcnt). 
Performance and payment bonds of I 00% of the contract price is reguircd 
oflhe winn ing bidder. 

7. Award lhc conlrncl on a firm fixed-price basis. 
8. Award the contracl to lhc lowest responsive, responsible bidder. 

Governing board approval is rcguired and cnnnol he dclcgnlcd. The 
governing board may reject and nil bids only for '·so1111d documcnled 
reasons." 

• •· ·· · · ( Formatted: Space After: 10 pt 

I. Constrnclion or repair conlrncts invo lving a build ing costing S300,000 
and above must comply wilh the followi ng add itional reguircmcnls under 
stale law: 
I. Formal IIUB (historically undcrutilizcd business) participat ion reguircd 

under (i.S. 143- 128.2. including local government outreach efforts and 
bidder good faith efforts. shall apply. 

2. Separate speeilications shall be drawn for the 11 V AC. electrical. plumbing. 
and gcnernl const ruction work as n:guircd under G.S. I 43-l 28(a). 

3. The project shall be hid using a statutori ly authorized bidd ing method 
(separate-prime. single-prime. or dual bidd ing) as reguircd under G.S. I 43-
l 29(a l ). 

J. Contrncts for Architeclurnl :111<1 Engineering Services costing under 
$ 150,000 shall be procured using the state "tvlini-Brooks Act'' rcguir.:mcnts 
(G.S. 143-6'1.3 I) as fo llows: 
I. Issue a Rcouest fo r Oualilications {RPO) to solicit gualilications from 

nual ilied firms (formal advcrliscment in n newspaper is not rcguircd). 
Price (other than unit cost) shall not be solicited in the lffQ, 

2. Take anirmativc steps to solicit price nuotcs from M/\VBE vendors and 
suppliers as provided for under 2 c.r .R. § 200.32 1. 

42 

Formatted: flormal, Indent: Len: 1.06", Don't add space 
between paragraphs of the same style, !lo bullets or 
numbering 



June 7, 20 18 Policy Co111111it1ee 

DRAFT 
3. Evaluate the qua Ii 11cations of respondents based on the evaluation criteria 

developed by the l'urchasin!! Department and/or Requesting Departmen t. 
11. Rank respondents based on qm1lil1calions and select the best quali11ecl 11rm. 

!'rice cannot be a factor in the evaluation. l'rd'erence may be given lo in
state (but not local) 11rms. 

5. Negotiate fair and reasonable compensation with the best gualifiecl firm . 
If negotiations arc not successfully. repeal negotiat ions with the second
best gualified firm. 

6. /\ward the contract lo best gua lificd firm with whom fair and reasonable 
compensation has been successfully negotiated. Governing board 
rrmiroval is not required. 

K. Contracts for Architectural rmcl Engineer ing Services costing SIS0,000 or 
more shall be procured us ing the Uniform Guidance "competitive proposal" 
procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(d){5)) as follo\\'s: 
I. Publicly advertise a Request for Oualillcalions (RFO) lo solicit 

qualifications from qualified 11rms {formal advertisement in a newspaper 
is nol required). Price {other than un it cost) shall not be solicited in the 

.!lliL 
2. Take aflirmat ive steps lo solic it price quotes from tvl/ \VI3 E vendors and 

suppliers as provided under 2 C.F. R. § 200.321. 
3. ldenli fy the evaluation criteria and relative importance of each criteria {the 

cri teria weight) in the RFO. 
4. Proposals must be solicited from an "adequate number of qualified 

sources·· (an individual federal grantor agency niay issue guidance 
interprding "adequate number''}. 

5. tvlusl ha\'e a written method for conducting, technical evaluations of 
proposals and select ing the best qua lified firm. 

6. Consider all responses to the publicized RFO to the maximum extent 
practical. 

7. Evaluate qualil1eations of respondents to rnnk respondents and select the 
most gualified firm. Preference may be given to in-stale (but not local) 
fi rms provided that granting the preference leaves an appropriate number 
Q[guali ficd firms to compete for the contract given the nature and size of 
~project. 

8. Price cannot be a factor in the initial selection of the most gualified 11rm. 
9. Once the most gualiticd fi rm is selected. negotiate fair and reasonable 

compensation. Ir negotiations arc not successfully, r.:pcal negot iations 
with the second-best qualified firm. 

43 

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 1.06", Doo't add space 
between paragraphs of the same style, rlo bullets or 
numbering 



June 7, 20 18 Policy Committee 

V. 

DRAFT 
10. /\ward the contract lo best gualilicd firm with whom fair and reasonable 

co111pcnsation has been successfully negotiated. Governing board 
approval is not required. 

Exceptions 

Non-competitive conlrncls arc allowed 011/)' under the fo llowing conditions and 
with the wrillen approval of the federal a!!ency or slate pass-through agency that 
awarded the federal funds: 

/\. Sole Source. A contract 111ay be awarded without competitive bidd ing when 
the item is avai lable from only one source. The Purchasing Department and/or 
Requesting Dcparlmcnl shall document the justification for and lack of 
availab le competition for the item. /\ sole source conlrncl mus! be approved by 
the governing board. 

ll. Public Exigency. /\ contract mnv be awarded without compet itive bidd ing 
when there is a public exigency. A public exigency exists when there is an 
im 111 inent or actual threat to public health, safety. and welfare, and the need for 
the item will not permit the delay resu lting from a co111pclitive bidding. 

·{ Formatted: Space Mer: 10 pt 

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0.75", Don't add space 
between paragraphs of the same style, !lo bullets or 
numbering 

• - - - · - - [ Formatted: Normal, No bul!ets or numbering 

C. lnacl eguatc Com petition. A contract may be awarded without competitive 
bidding when competition is determined to be inadequate afler allempts to 
solicit bids from a m1mbcr of sources as required under this Policy does not 
result in a qualified winning bidder. 

D. Fcdcrnl Contract. /\ cont ract 111ay be awarded without competit ive bidding 
when the purchase is made fro111 a federal contract available on the U.S. General 

Formatted: Normal, rlo bullets or numbering 

Serv ices Administration schedules of contracts. __________ _ . _ __ ________ ____ __ __ ____ __ .- · ·· {'.:,,F=o=rm= at=te=d=: =Fon= t :=Bo=!d= ========== 

• -- -- - - [ Formatted: flormal, r10 bullets or numbering 

E. Awarding Agency Approval. /\ contract may be awarded without co111pctiti ve 
bidding with the express wrillcn authorization of the federal agency or stale 
pass-through agcncv that awarded the fl!dc rnl funds so long as awarding the 
contract without co111petition is consistent with stale law. 

A_ - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - • - - - - - - • - ••• -- • - -- ----- • • • • - - - - -· - - -~--~--

***** 
Vicki Evans, Finance Director, reviewed the background information and recommendation 
and information as recorded above. 

MOTION: 

SECOND: 

Co111missioncr Evans moved to recommend to the full board approval of the 
proposed amendments to the County's Purchasing Policy by incorporating 
federal uniform guidance procurement standards. 
Commissioner Boose 

44 

Formatted: Font: Bo!d 

Formatted: Centered, Space After: 10 pt 



June 7, 2018 Policy Committee 

DRAFT 
VOTE: UNANIMOUS (3-0) 

Ms. Evans stated what lead to the Sheriff's Office electing not to participate in the County's 
Purchasing Policy was a difference in opinion of whether to issue a formal bid for uniforms 
for the Sheriff's Office. Ms. Evans stated she is concerned about this concept because it 
crosses over to G.S. 159 compliance and also statutory low bid requirements. Ms. Evans 
stated in discussion with the County's audit engagement partner, she was informed that if 
an exception is allowed, there must be another policy in place because an exception from 
policy is not an exception from compliance with state and federal regulations, whichever 
may apply. 

Commissioner Boose asked Ms. Evans whether she had seen a copy of Sheriffs Office 
policy that must be in place for them to have an exception to the County's policy. Ms. 
Evans responded in the negative. Commissioner Boose asked whether the Sheriff's omce 
had a policy. Ms. Evans stated it is her understanding that the Sheriff's Office docs not 
have a written policy in regard to purchasing. 

Mr. Moorefield stated this puts Ms. Evans as the Finance Officer in a difficult situation 
because the only control she has over the Sheriff's Office is not to write checks, but the 
Board and auditors expect her to comply with all state lmvs and County policies. Mr. 
Moorefield stated there is basically a difference in opinion between the attorney for the 
Sheriff's Office and himself as to application of the State's purchasing law as they relate 
to the Sheriff's Office. 

MOTION: 

SECONO: 
VOTE: 

Commissioner Boose moved to recommend to the full board denial of the 
proposed amendment to the County's Purchasing Policy by excepting the 
Sheriff's Office from the Purchasing Policy. 
Commissioner Evans 
UNANIMOUS (3-0) 

6.0THER ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

There were no other items of business. 

MEEmNG ADJOURNED AT 10:30 AM 

45 



RICKEY L. MOOREFIELD 
County Atto rney 

ITEM NO .. _..c;;2;;;__ _ _ 
PHYLLIS P. JONES 

Assistant County ,\ ttorncy 

TO: 

OFFICE OF THE COUNTY ATTORNEY 

nonERT A. HASTY, JR. 
,\ssist.111t County Attorney 

5,11 foloor, New Courthouse • P.O. Box 1829 • Suite 55 1 • Fayetteville, North Carolina 28302- 1829 
(9 10) 678-7762 

MEMO FOR THE AUGUST 2, 2018, 
MEETING OF THE POLICY COMMITTEE 

FROM: 
Asst. Manager Sally Shutt 
Co. Atty. fll . .AfuOJte{ieid 
July 25, 2018 DATE: 

SUBJECT: Consideration of Ordinance Regulating Maintenance of Vegetation in 
Residential Subdivisions 

Requested by Commissioner Evans 
Estimated Committee Time: 15 minutes 
Attachment: Draft of Requested Ordinance 

BACKGROUND: 

Commissioner Evans requested the county attorney to draft an ordinance to address the issue of 
overgrown lots in residential neighborhoods. The proposed ordinance would make it unlawful to 
allow any weeds, grass, or other vegetation on a lot in a residential subdivision to grow to a 
height of eight inches, other than bushes, trees, or similar plants intended to be used for 
landscaping. It would apply to both vacant lots and lots with dwellings located thereon which 
are located within a residential subdivision for which a plat has been recorded in the Register of 
Deeds. It would only apply to lots which are adjacent to at least one lot in the same subdivision 
with an occupied dwelling located thereon. 

Enforcement would be the responsibility of the Minimum Housing Inspectors in the Planning 
and Inspections Department. The county does not have the authority to cut the vegetation except 
through a comt action to abate a nuisance. For that reason, enforcement actions will usually take 
several months. In the past, complaints about overgrown lots have been directed at lots with 
dwellings that had been abandoned by the owner. We have encountered owners in bankruptcy 
court in other states, active duty soldiers who are deployed or relocated and protected by the 
Soldiers and Sailors Relief Act, and lots owned by unknown heirs due to estates not being 
administered. All of these create serious problems in pursing legal remedies. For someone in 
bankruptcy court in another state, we will have to hire an attorney licensed in that state to 
petition the court for a release of the bankruptcy stay. That would have to be approved by the 
Board of Commissioners. 

For those violations occurring on a lot which contains an occupied dwelling, the occupant would 
be responsible to maintain the Jot in accordance with the ordinance. If the dwelling is vacant but 
the owner is a resident of the county, the owner would be the responsible party. Violation of the 

Vegetation Ordinance Page 1 of2 



ordinance would be a misdemeanor with a maximum fine of $50 or up to 30 days in jail. For 
those violations where there is an occupied dwelling on the lot, enforcement would be by 
criminal prosecution in Environmental Court. Enforcement of the ordinance would be in the 
same manner as other code violations taken to Environmental Court. The judge usually orders 
the defondant to correct the code violation. 

For those lots which are unoccupied and the owner is out of state or cannot be identified, the 
only option is to pursue injunctive relief in court. The county would end up with responsibility 
for correction of the violation but we could attach a lien on the property for the costs incurred. 
The county attorney recommends that we should issue an RFP to establish a list of contractors 
that would accept this work on an as-needed basis. This is how most of these cases would be 
handled. 

RECOMMENDATION/PROPOSED ACTION: 

The county attorney does not have a recommendation on adoption of this ordinance. 

Vegetation Ordinance Page 2 of2 



ARTICLE XIII. REGULATION OF VEGETATION WITHIN RESIDENTIAL 
SUBDIVISIONS 

Section 9.5-155. Purpose. 

The Board of Commissioners finds that overgrown lots in residential subdivisions provide cover 
for harboring insects, rodents, vermin, and other pests, enables the growth and spreading of 
noxious weeds and plants, and invites the dumping of garbage and trash. The Board further finds 
that these conditions are detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the citizens and enacts 
this ordinance for the purpose ofregulating the maintenance of vegetation within residential 
subdivisions. 

Sec. 9.5-156. Maintenance of vegetation required in residential subdivisions. 

It shall be unlawful for the owner or occupant of any lot or parcel of land located in a residential 
subdivision within the county's jurisdiction and outside the corporate limits of any city or town 
to permit to exist on any such lot or parcel ofland any growth of weeds, grass, or other 
vegetation to a height of eight inches, except such bushes, trees, or like vegetation which is used 
for landscaping purposes and is intended to be maintained at a height greater than eight inches, 
any rank vegetable growth that exhales unpleasant and noxious odors, or that may conceal filthy 
deposits, or harbor insects, rodents, vermin, or any offensive matter or thing, whether the same 
be upon occupied or vacant premises. For the purpose of enforcement of this section, a 
residential subdivision is defined as an area which has been subdivided into lots for the location 
of dwellings, for which a subdivision plat has been recorded in the Office of the Register of 
Deeds, and within which at least one occupied dwelling is located on a lot or parcel ofland that 
is adjacent to the premises which is deemed to be in violation of this section. 

Section 9.5-157. Enforcement. 

It shall be the responsibility of the Minimum Housing Inspections Section of the Planning and 
Inspections Department to enforce this ordinance. 

Section 9.5-158. Penalties. 

The penalty for violations of this ordinance shall be as set forth in Sections 1-11 and 1-12, 
Chapter 1, of the County Code. 



VICKI EVANS 
Finance Director 

ITEM NO._ ~---

F1NANCE OFFICE 

ROBERT TUCKER 
Accounting Supervisor 

IVONNE MENDEZ 
Accounting Supervisor 

4'" Floor, Room No. 45 [, Courthouse • PO Box I 829 • Faycmville, No1th Carolina 28302- [ 829 

TO: 

FROM: 

THRU: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

Requested by: 

Presenter( s): 

MEMO FOR THE AGENDA OF THE AUGUST 2, 2018 
MEETING OF THE POLICY COMMITTEE 

POLICY COMMITTEE 

VICKI EVANS, FINANCE DIRECTOR 

AMY CANNON, COUNTY MANAGER 

JULY 23, 2018 

CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENT TO THE PURCHASING POLICY 
TO REFLECT UPDATES IN THE FEDERAL UNIFORM 
PROCUREMENT STANDARDS 

Amy Cannon, County Manager 

Vicki Evans, Finance Director 

Estimate of Committee Time Needed: 5 Minutes 

BACKGROUND 

The last update to the County Purchasing Policy occurred on June 18, 2018. That update 
incorporated the Federal Uniform Guidance Procurement Standards within an addendum to the 
Policy. On June 20, 2018, the Office of Management and Budget (0MB) released a statement 
that the micro-purchase threshold has increased from $3,500 to $10,000. The statement also 
revealed that the simplified acquisition threshold was increased from $150,000 to $250,000. 

The policy addendum has been updated to reflect the recent dollar threshold changes. All 
changes are shown via track changes, beginning on page five of the attached document. 

RECOMMENDATION/PROPOSED ACTION 

Management recommends the Policy Committee approve and forward to the Board of 
Commissioners the revised Purchasing Policy. 

Attaclunents: Revised Purchasing Policy 
0MB Memorandum M-18-18 



Cumberland County 

Section I - Board Approved Policies 

Subsection 3: Cumberland County Financial/ Audit 

Policy No. 3-3: Purchasing Policy 

The following policy was originally adopted on June 21, 1999 by the Board of 
Commissioners. This policy was amended on Februa1'Y 25, 2002, November 1, 2010, June 

5, 2017, and June 18, 2018 by the Board of Commissioners. 

1.0 PURPOSE 

2.0 

3.0 

This manual has been developed as a resource for Cumberland County employees to follow 
when procuring goods and services on behalf of the County. The policy and procedures 
provided in this manual were established to ensure the fair and equitable treatment of all 
persons involved in public purchasing, to maximize the purchasing value of public funds 
in procurement, and to provide safeguards for maintaining a procurement system of quality 
and integrity, in accordance with North Carolina General Statutes (N.C.G.S). 

SCOPE 

This policy applies to all County employees conducting purchases on behalf of 
Cumberland County. 

l'OLICY 

3.1 Local Preference Policy 

Contracts for the provision of services in any amount and all contracts for the purchase of 
apparatus, materials, supplies and equipment in which the aggregate purchase price in any 
single contract is less than $30,000 shall be awarded to local vendors or suppliers, to the 
greatest extent possible, in accordance with the further conditions set out herein. 

Local vendors or suppliers shall be those who demonstrate that they pay business personal 
or real property taxes and are either self~employed residents of Cumberland County or 
employ at least one resident of Cumberland County as an employee or ofiicer of the 
contracting business entity. 

Subsection 3 
Policy No. 3-3 Page 1 



3.2 Purchase Orders 

All services and purchases in amounts of $1,000 and more must have a purchase order 
prior to the purchase being made or the services being rendered. All purchases of goods in 
an amount greater than $500 requires a document (invoice, quote, proposal, etc.) with sale 
details. 

3.3 Purchases & Services 

Less than 1,000 

Department heads shall authorize services or purchases of apparatus, supplies, materials or 
equipment up to $999.99 without a purchase order if sufficient funds are budgeted and 
available within the department budget. Prior to the purchase departments must ensure 
there is an appropriation authorizing the obligation and that sufficient funds will remain in 
the appropriation to pay the amounts that are expected to come due in the fiscal year in 
which the obligation is incurred. 

$1,000- $29,999.99 
Department heads shall solicit proposals for services or purchases of apparatus, supplies, 
materials or equipment when the estimated cost is between $1,000 - $29,999.99. County 
Purchasing will review the purchase upon receipt of requisition to ensure compliance with 
County policies. County Purchasing may elect to solicit additional proposals on a random 
basis or if experience has revealed that a more favorable price is available. 

3.4 Purchases of apparatus, supplies, materials, or equipment 

$30,000 - $89,999.99 
Informal bids are required for any purchase of apparatus, supplies, materials, or equipment 
that requires an expenditure of $30,000 - $89,999.99, except for purchases that qualify 
under the Competitive Bidding Exceptions as per N.C.G.S 143-129(e). Departments shall 
submit specifications to County Purchasing for purchases in this category. 

$90,000 and Above 
Formal bids are required for any purchase of apparatus, supplies, materials, or equipment 
in amounts of $90,000 or more, with exception of purchases that qualify under the 
Competitive Bidding Exceptions as per N.C.G.S 143-129(e). Departments shall submit 
specifications to County Purchasing for purchases in this category. The County Manager 
will must approve bid awards in amounts between $90,000 - $99,999.99. The Board of 
County Commissioners must approve bid awards in amounts of $100,000 or greater. 

Subsection 3 
Policy No. 3-3 Page 2 



3.5 Purchase of Services 

$30,000 and Above 
An Informal RFP process is required for services estimated to cost $30,000 or more. 
County Purchasing will review the proposal upon receipt of requisition to ensure 
compliance with county policies. County Purchasing may elect to solicit additional 
proposals on a random basis or if experience has revealed that a more favorable price is 
available. 

3.6 Procurement Canis 

The procurement card program was established to provide a more rapid turnaround of 
requisitions for low dollar value goods, and to reduce paperwork and handling costs. 
Procurement cardholders may initiate transactions in person, or by telephone, within the 
established limits of these procedures. Department heads may designate individuals to 
receive procurement cards. Procurement cardholders must attend a class in County 
Purchasing addressing the guidelines involved in the responsibility associated with the 
card. To ensure pre-audit requirement compliance, funds for each department's estimated 
procurement card charges shall be encumbered at the beginning of each fiscal year. 

3. 7 Contracts 

All contracts for expenditures, in amounts of $50,000 or more require County Manager 
signature. Contracts resulting from a formal bid process for expenditures in amounts of 
$ I 00,000 or more require Chairman to the Board of Commissioners signature, alter Board 
approval. Contracts with a total amount less than $50,000 may be signed by the Department 
head. 

These signature requirements pertain to all contracts in which the county is obligated to 
expend funds, even if the funds have been approved by the Board of Commissioners in the 
original budget. 

Contracts funded with federal grant or loan funds must be procured in a manner that 
conforms with all applicable Federal laws, policies, and standards, including those under 
the Uniform Guidance (2 C.F.R. Part 200). See the Addendum following section 4.0 of 
this policy for the Uniform Guidance Procurement Policy. 

3.8 Federal and State Law Compliance 

Federal law and North Carolina general statues allow local policy to be more restrictive. 
When comparing federal, state, and local procurement requirements to implement federal 
programs or grants, the most restrictive requirement shall be applied. This policy is more 
restrictive regarding bid requirements of services and dollar thresholds for contractual 
signatures in comparison to state statute requirements. Periodically, legislation results in 
changes to law and/or general statutes. This policy shall be automatically updated upon 
changes in general statutes referenced within this policy, except for bid requirements of 
services and dollar thresholds for contractual signatures. 

Subsection 3 
Policy No. 3-3 Page 3 



4.0 IMPLEMENTATION 

I. 

II. 

The Finance Director is responsible for implementing and enforcing this Policy and to 
interpret it consistent with its spirit and intent, fiscal prudence and accountability. The 
Finance Director is authorized to prescribe additional administrative instructions for 
implementing the above policy. 

ADDENDUM 

Uniform Guidance Procurement Policy for North Carolina Local 
Governments 

Purpose 

The purpose of this Policy is to establish guidelines that meet or exceed the procurement 
requirements for purchases of goods (apparatus, supplies, materials, and equipment), 
services, and construction or repair projects when federal funds are being used in whole or 
in part to pay for the cost of the contract. 

Policy 

A. Application of Policy. This policy applies to contracts for purchases, services, and 
construction or repair work funded with federal financial assistance ( direct or 
reimbursed). The requirements of this Policy also apply to any subrecipient of the 
funds. 

All federally funded projects, loans, grants, and sub-grants, whether funded in part or 
wholly, are subject to the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for federal awards (Uniform Guidance) codified at 2 C.F.R. Part 
200 unless otherwise directed in writing by the federal agency or state pass-through 
agency that awarded the funds. 

B. Compliance with Feclernl Law. All procurement activities involving the expenditure 
of federal funds must be conducted in compliance with the Procurement Standards 
codified in 2 C.F.R. § 200.317 through § 200-326 unless otherwise directed in writing 
by the federal agency or state pass-through agency that awarded the funds. Cumberland 
County will follow all applicable local, state, and federal procurement requirements 
when expending federal funds. Should the County have more stringent requirements, 
the most restrictive requirement shall apply so long as it is consistent with state and 
federal law. 

C. Contrnct Award. All contracts shall be awarded only to the lowest responsive 
responsible bidder possessing the ability to perform successfully under the terms and 
conditions of the contract. 

D. No Evasion. No contract may be divided to bring the cost under bid thresholds or to 
evade any requirements under this Policy or state and federal law. 

Subsection 3 
Policy No. 3-3 Page 4 



III. 

E. Contract Reqnircmcnts. All contracts paid for in whole or in part with federal funds 
shall be in writing. The written contract must include or incorporate by reference the 
provisions required under 2 C.F.R § 200.326 and as provided for under 2 C.F.R. Part 
200, Appendix II. 

F. Contractors' Conflict oflntcrcst. Designers, suppliers, and contractors that assist in 
the development or drafting of specifications, requirements, statements of work, 
invitation for bids or requests for proposals shall be excluded from competing for such 
requirements. 

G. Approval and Modification. The administrative procedures contained in this Policy 
are administrative and may be changed as necessary at the staff level to comply with 
state and federal law. 

General Procurement Standards and Procedures: 

Either the Purchasing Department or the Requesting Department shall procure all contracts 
in accordance with the requirements of this Section of the Policy. 

A. Necessity. Purchases must be necessary to perform the scope of work and must avoid 
acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative items. The Purchasing Department and/or 
the Requesting Department should check with the federal surplus property agency 
prior to buying new items when feasible and less expensive. Strategic sourcing should 
be considered with other departments and/or agencies who have similar needs to 
consolidate procurements and services to obtain better pricing. 

B. Clear Specifications. All solicitations must incorporate a clear and accurate 
description of the technical requirements for the materials, products, or services to be 
procured, and shall include all other requirements which bidders must fulfill and all 
other factors to be used in evaluating bids or proposals. Technical requirements must 
not contain features that restrict competition. 

C. Notice of Federal Funding. All bid solicitations must acknowledge the use of federal 
funding for the contract. In addition, all prospective bidders or offerors must 
acknowledge that funding is contingent upon compliance with all terms and conditions 
of the funding award. 

D. Compliance by Contractors. All solicitations shall inform prospective contractors 
that they must comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, executive orders, 
and terms and conditions of the funding award. 

E. Fixed Price. Solicitations must state that bidders shall submit bids on a fixed price 
basis and that the contract shall be awarded on this basis unless otherwise provided 
for in this Policy. Cost plus percentage of cost contracts are prohibited. Time and 
materials contracts are prohibited in most circumstances. Time and materials 
contracts will not be used unless no other form of contract is suitable and the contract 
includes a "Not to Exceed" amount. A time and materials contract shall not be 
awarded without express written permission of the federal agency or state pass
through agency that awarded the funds. 

Subsection 3 
Policy No. 3-3 Page 5 



F. Use of Brand Names. When possible, performance or functional specifications are 
preferred to allow for more competition leaving the determination of how the reach 
the required result to the contractor. Brand names may be used only when it is 
impractical or uneconomical to write a clear and accurate description of the 
requirement(s). When a brand name is listed, it is used as reference only and "or equal" 
must be included in the description. 

G. Lease versus Purchase. Under certain circumstances, it may be necessary to perform 
an analysis of lease versus purchase alternatives to determine the most economical 
approach. 

H. Dividing Contract for Minority/Women Business Enterprises (M/WBE) 
Participation. Ir economically feasible , procurements may be cliviclecl into smaller 
components to allow maximum participation of small and minority businesses and 
women business enterprises. The procurement cannot be divided to bring the cost 
under bid thresholds or to evade any requirements under this Policy. 

I. Documentation. Documentation must be maintained by the Purchasing Department 
and/or the Requesting Department detailing the history of all procurements. The 
documentation should include the procurement method used, contract type, basis for 
contractor selection, price, sources solicited, public notices, cost analysis, bid 
documents, addenda, amendments, contractor's responsiveness, notice of award, 
copies of notices to unsuccessful bidders or offerors, record of protests or disputes, 
bond documents, notice to proceed, purchase order, and contract. All documentation 
relating to the award of any contract must be made available to the granting agency 
upon request. 

J. Cost Estimate. For all procurements costing $-1--W,GGG250,000 or more, the 
Purchasing Department and/or Requesting Department shall develop an estimate of 
the cost or the procurement prior to soliciting bids. Cost estimates may be developed 
by reviewing prior contract costs, online review of similar products or services, or 
other means by which a good faith cost estimate may be obtained. Cost estimates for 
construction and repair contracts may be developed by the project designer. 

K. Contract Requirements. The Requesting Department must prepare a written 
contract incorporating the provisions referenced in Section II.C of this Policy. 

L. Debarment. No contract shall be awarded to a contractor included on the federally 
debarred bidder's list. 

M. Contractor Oversight. The Requesting Department receiving the federal funding 
must maintain oversight of the contract to ensure that contractor is performing in 
accordance with the contract terms, conditions, and specifications. 

N. Open Competition. Solicitations shall be prepared in a way to be fair and provide 
open competition. The procurement process shall not restrict competition by imposing 
unreasonable requirements on bidders, including but not limited to unnecessary 
supplier experience, excessive or unnecessary bonding, specifying a brand name 

Subsection 3 
Policy No. 3-3 Page 6 



IV. 

without allowing for "or equal" products, or other unnecessary requirements that have 
the effect of restricting competition. 

0 . Geographic Preference. No contract shall be awarded on the basis of a geographic 
preference. 

Specific Procurement Procedures 

Either the Pmchasing Department or the Requesting Department shall solicit bids in 
accordance with the requirements under this Section of the Policy based on the type and 
cost of the contract. 

A. Service Contracts except for Architectural/Engineering (A/E) professional services 
and Purchase Contracts costing less than $3,SOOl 0,000 shall be procured using the 
Uniform Guidance "micro-purchase" procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(a)) as follows: 
1. The contract may be awarded without soliciting pricing or bids if the price of the 

goods or services is considered to be fair and reasonable. 
2. To the extent practicable, purchases must be distributed among qualified suppliers. 

B. Service Contracts ( except for A/E professional services) and Purchase Contracts 
costing $3,SOOl0,000 up to $90,000 shall be procured using the Uniform Guidance 
"small purchase" procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(b)) as follows: 
1. Obtain price or rate quotes from an "adequate number" of qualified sources (a 

federal grantor agency might issue guidance interpreting "adequate number," so 
the Requesting Department should review the terms and conditions of the grant 
award documents to confirm whether specific guidance has been issued). 

2. Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers 
as required under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

3. Cost or price analysis is not required prior to soliciting bids. 
4. Award the contract on a fixed-price basis (a not-to-exceed basis is permissible for 

service contracts where obtaining a fixed price is not feasible). 
5. Award the contract to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder. 

C. Service Contracts ( except for A/E professional services) and Purchase Contracts 
costing $90,000 and above shall be procured using a combination of the most 
restrictive requirements of the Uniform Guidance "sealed bid" procedure (2 C.F.R. § 
200.320(c)) and state formal bidding procedures (G.S. 143-129) as follows: 
1. Cost or price analysis is required prior to soliciting bids. 
2. Complete specifications or purchase description must be made available to all 

bidders . 
3. The bid must be formally advertised in a newspaper of general circulation for at 

least seven full clays between the date of the advertisement and the elate of the 
public bid opening. Electronic-only advertising must be authorized by the 
governing board. The advertisement must state the elate, time, and location of the 
public bid opening, indicate where specifications may be obtained, and reserve to 
the governing board the right to reject any or all bids only for " sound documented 
reasons." 

4. Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers 
as required under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

Subsection 3 
Policy No. 3-3 Page 7 



5. Open bids at the public bid opening on the elate, time, and at the location noticed 
in the public advertisement. All bids must be submitted sealed. A minimum of 2 
bids must be received in order to open all bids. 

6. Award the contract to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder on a fixed-price 
basis. Governing board approval is required for purchase contracts unless the 
governing board has delegated award authority to an individual official or 
employee. Any and all bids may be rejected only for "sound documented reasons." 

D. Service Contracts ( except for A/E professional services) costing $1-S{),000250,000 
and above may be procured using the Uniform Guidance "competitive proposal" 
procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(cl)) when the "sealed bid" procedure is not appropriate 
for the particular type of service being sought. The procedures are as follows: 
1. A Request for Proposals (RFP) must be publicly advertised. Formal advertisement 

in a newspaper is not required so long as the method of advertisement will solicit 
proposals from an "adequate number" of qualified firms. 

2. Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers 
as provided under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

3. Identify evaluation criteria and relative importance of each criteria ( criteria 
weight) in the RFP. 

4. Consider all responses to the publicized RFP to the maximum extent practical. 
5. Must have a written method for conducting technical evaluations of proposals and 

selecting the winning firm. 
6. Award the contract to the responsible firm with most advantageous proposal taking 

into account price and other factors identified in the RFP. Governing board 
approval is not required. 

7. Award the contract on a fixed-price or cost-reimbursement basis. 

E. Constl'tlction and repair contracts costing less than $;,soot0,000 shall be procured 
using the Uniform Guidance "micro-purchase" procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(a)) as 
follows: 
I. The contract may be awarded without soliciting pricing or bids if the price of the 

goods or services is considered to be fair and reasonable. 
2. To the extent practicable, contracts must be distributed among qualified suppliers. 

F. Constl'tlction and repair contracts costing $~ 0010,000 up to $1-§9,t)00250,000 
shall be procured using the Uniform Guidance "small purchase" procedure (2 C.F.R. 
§ 200.320(b)) as follows: 
1. Obtain price or rate quotes from an "adequate number" of qualified sources (a 

federal grantor agency might issue guidance interpreting "adequate number," so 
the requesting department should review the terms and conditions of the grant 
award documents to confirm whether specific guidance has been issued). 

2. Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers 
as required under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

3. Cost or price analysis is not required prior to soliciting bids, although price 
estimates may be provided by the project designer. 

4. Award the contract on a fixed-price or not-to-exceed basis. 
5. Award the contract to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder. Governing board 

approval is not required . 

Subsection 3 
Policy No. 3-3 Page 8 



G. Constrnction and repair contracts costing $-l-S0,000250,000 up to $500,000 shall 
be procured using the Uniform Guidance "sealed bid" procedure (2 C.F.R. § 
200.320(c)) as fo llows: 
I. Cost or price analysis is required prior to soliciting bids (this cost estimate may be 

provided by the project designer). 
2. Complete specifications must be made available to all bidders. 
3. Publicly advertise the bid sol icitation for a period of time sufficient to give bidders 

notice of opportunity to submit bids (formal advertisement in a newspaper is not 
required so long as other means of advertising will provide sufficient notice of the 
opportunity to bid). The advertisement must state the date, time, and location of 
the public bid opening, and indicate where specifications may be obtained. 

4. Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers 
as provided under 2 C.F.R. § 200.32 I . 

5. Open the bids at the public bid opening on the date, time, and at the location 
noticed in the public advertisement. All bids must be submitted sealed. A 
minimum of 2 bids must be received in order to open all bids. 

6. A 5% bid bond is required of all bidders . Performance and payment bonds of 
l 00% of the contract price is required of the winning bidder. 

7. Award the contract on a firm fi xed-price basis. 
8. Award the contract to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder. Governing board 

approval is not required. Any and all bids may be rejected onl y for "sound 
documented reasons." 

H. Construction and repair contracts costing $500,000 and above shall be procured 
using a combination of the most restricti ve requirements of the Uni form Guidance 
"sealed bid" procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(c)) and state formal bidding procedures 
(G.S. 143-129) as follows: 
1. Cost or price analysis is required prior to soliciting bids (this cost estimate should 

be provided by the project designer). 
2. Complete speci fications must be made available to all bidders. 
3. Formally advertise the bid in a newspaper of general circulation for at least seven 

full days between the date of the advertisement and the date of the public bid 
opening. Electronic-only advertising must be authorized by the governing board. 
The advertisement must state the elate, time, and location of the public bid opening, 
indicate where specifications may be obtained, and reserve to the governing board 
the right to reject any or all bids only for "sound documented reasons." 

4. Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers 
as prov ided under 2 C.F.R. § 200.32 1. 

5. Open the bids at the public bid opening on the date, time, and at the locat ion 
noticed in the public adverti sement. All bids must be submitted sealed and in paper 
form. A minimum of 3 bids must be received in order to open all bids. 

6. A 5% bid bond is required of all bidders (a bid that does not include a bid bond 
cannot be counted toward the 3-bid minimum requirement) . Performance and 
payment bonds of I 00% of the contract price is required of the winning bidder. 

7. Award the contract on a firm fixed-price basis. 
8. Award the contract to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder. Governing board 

approval is required and cannot be delegated. The governing board may reject and 
all bids only for "sound documented reasons." 

Subsection 3 
Policy No. 3-3 Page 9 



I. Construction or repair contracts involving a building costing $300,000 and above 
must comply with the following additional requirements under state law: 
1. Formal HUB (historically underutilized business) participation required under 

G.S. 143-128.2, including local government outreach efforts and bidder good faith 
efforts, shall apply. 

2. Separate specifications shall be drawn for the HV AC, electrical, plumbing, and 
general construction work as required under G.S. 143-128(a). 

3. The project shall be bid using a statutorily authorized bidding method (separate
prime, single-prime, or dual bidding) as required under G.S. l 43- 129(a 1 ). 

J. Contracts for Architectural and Engineering Services costing under 
$!..§0,()00250,000 shall be procured using the state "Mini-Brooks Act" requirements 
(G.S. 143-64.31) as follows: 
1. Issue a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to solicit qualifications from qualified 

firms (formal advertisement in a newspaper is not required). Price ( other than unit 
cost) shall not be solicited in the RFQ. 

2. Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers 
as provided for under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321 . 

3. Evaluate the qualifications of respondents based on the evaluation criteria 
developed by the Purchasing Department and/or Requesting Department. 

4 . Rank respondents based on qualifications and select the best qualified firm. Price 
cannot be a factor in the evaluation. Preference may be given to in-state (but not 
local) firms. 

5. Negotiate fair and reasonable compensation with the best qualified firm. If 
negotiations are not successfully, repeat negotiations with the second-best 
qualified firm . 

6. Award the contract to best qualified firm with whom fair and reasonable 
compensation has been successfully negotiated. Governing board approval is not 
required. 

K. Contracts for Architectural and Engineering Services costing $-l..§0,()00250,000 
or more shall be procured using the Uniform Guidance "competitive proposal" 
procedure (2 C .F.R. § 200.320(d)(5)) as follows: 
1. Publicly advertise a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to solicit qualifications 

from qualified firms (formal advertisement in a newspaper is not required). Price 
(other than unit cost) shall not be solicited in the RFQ. 

2. Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers 
as provided under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

3. Identify the evaluation criteria and relative importance of each criteria (the 
criteria weight) in the RFQ. 

4. Proposals must be solicited from an "adequate number of qualified sources" (an 
individual federal grantor agency may issue guidance interpreting "adequate 
number"). 

5. Must have a written method for conducting technical evaluations of proposals 
and selecting the best qualified firm. 

6. Consider all responses to the publicized RFQ to the maximum extent practical. 
7. Evaluate qualifications of respondents to rank respondents and select the most 

qualified firm. Preference may be given to in-state (but not local) firms provided 

Subsection 3 
Policy No. 3-3 Page 10 



that granting the preference leaves an appropriate number of qualified firms to 
compete for the contract given the nature and size of the project. 

8. Price cannot be a factor in the initial selection of the most qualified firm. 
9. Once the most qualified firm is selected, negotiate fair and reasonable 

compensation. If negotiations are not successfully, repeat negotiations with the 
second-best qualified firm. 

10. Award the contract to best qualified firm with whom fair and reasonable 
compensation has been successfully negotiated. Governing board approval is not 
required. 

V. Exceptions 

Non-competitive contracts are allowed 011/y under the following conditions and with the 
written approval of the federal agency or state pass-through agency that awarded the federal 
funds: 

A. Sole Source. A contract may be awarded without competitive bidding when the item 
is available from only one source. The Purchasing Department and/or Requesting 
Department shall document the justification for and lack of available competition for 
the item. A sole source contract must be approved by the governing board. 

B. Public Exigency. A contract may be awarded without competitive bidding when there 
is a public exigency. A public exigency exists when there is an imminent or actual 
threat to public health, safety, and welfare, and the need for the item will not permit the 
delay resulting from a competitive bidding. 

C. Inadequate Competition. A contract may be awarded without competitive bidding 
when competition is determined to be inadequate after attempts to solicit bids from a 
number of sources as required under this Policy does not result in a qualified winning 
bidder. 

D. Federal Contract. A contract may be awarded without competitive bidding when the 
purchase is made from a federal contract available on the U.S. General Services 
Administration schedules of contracts. 

E. Awarding Agency Approval. A contract may be awarded without competitive 
bidding with the express written authorization of the federal agency or state pass
through agency that awarded the federal funds so long as awarding the contract without 
competition is consistent with state law. 

<END> 

Subsection 3 
Policy No. 3-3 Page 11 



OFFICE Of l'EDERAL 
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

M-18-18 

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT 
OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGE:T 

WASHINGTON, D.C, 20503 

June 20, 2018 

MBMORANDUM FOR CHIIW FINANCIAL OFFICllRS AND HEADS OF SMALL IlXIlCUTIVll 
AG8NC1ElS ~ 

1 
FROM: Tim Soltis <._(' /V',--~· 

SUBJECT: 

Deputy Controller, Office of Federal Flnnnclnl Management 

Implementing Stntutory Changes to the Micro-Purclrnse ond the Simplified 
Acquisition Thresholds for l'innncial Assistance 

In accordance with recent stotutory changes set forth in the National Defense Authorization Acts (NOAA) 
for Fiscal Y cars 2017 nnd 2018, this memorandum mises the threshold for micro-purchases under Federal 
flnoncial assistance awords to $10,000, ond raises the threshold for simplified nci1ulsltlons to $250,000 for 
oll recipients. Further, it implements nn approvnl J>roccss for ccrtnin Institutions thnt wont to request 
micro-purchase thresholds higher thnn $10,000. Agencies are required to implement those chnnges in the 
terms nnd conditions of their awards, nnd recipients of existing l'ederal financial assistance awards may 
implement !hem In their internal conlrols. 

Dnckp1·9und 

This memorandum applies 10 all Federal agencies, os defined at S U.S.C. § 551(1), lhnl nwnrd grants or 
coopernlive ngreemcnls. It implemenls chnnges to the mlcro,purchase and shnJ>lified ncqulsition 
thresholds for finnnclal nssislnnee under lhe NDAAs for l'iseal Year (FY} 2017 and PY20J 8, Tho micro· 
purchnsc threshold refers to purchases of supplies or services using simplified oequisition procedures, nol 
to exceed on cslnbllshed amounl pursuant to the Office of Management and Budge! (0MB) 
Govcrnmontwide Guidance for Grants ond Agreements ("Uniform Guidance") nl 2 C.F.R. § 200.67 
(Micro-purchase). The simplified ncqnlsilion threshold refers to purchases of property or services using 
smnll purchase methods nol to exceed an eslal>llshed mnounl pursuant 10 2 C.F.R. § 200.88 (Simplified 
acquisition threshold). l'or l'cdcml financial assistnnco nwnrds, these purchases ore acquired for uso by o 
Federal program. 'fhe NOAA for l'Y2017 increased tho micro-purchase lhreshold from $3,500 to $10,000 
for instltullons of higher education, or re.lated or affiliated nonprofit entitles, nonprofil research 
organiwlions or Independent research institulcs (41 lJ.S.C. § 1908). The NDAA for FY2018 lncrcnses 
the micro-purchase threshold to$ I 0,000 for nll 1·ecipien1s nnd nlso Increases the simplified acquisition 
lhroshold from $ I 00,000 to $250,000 fornll recipienls. 

lmplcme11tlng the NDAA for FY2017 

Scclion 2 I 7(b) of the NDAA for FY2017 raises lho mlcro,pnrchase threshold to $10,000 for 
11rocuremenls under grants and coopcrntive ngreemc111s for lnstltntlons of higher education, or relaled or 
nffillnled nonproflt entities, nonprofit research organlzallons or l11dcpenden1 research lnstllules. 1 

1 Pub. L. No. t 14-328 (cedlfted at 41 U.S.C. § 1902(n)(2)). 



The NOAA for FY2017 also establishes 1111 interim uniform process by which these recipients can request 
and Federal agencies can approve requests to apply a higher micro-purchase threshold. Specifically, the 
2017 NOAA allows II threshold nbove $10,000 lfnpproved by the head of the relevant executive O(\cncy. 
For purposes of this approval, the Institution's cognlznnt Federal agency for indirect cost rntcs will be the 
relevant executive agency ns deflned In 2 C.F.R. § 200. 19 (Cognizant agency for Indirect costs), To 
receive n higher threshold, the lnstllntion must either hnve "clean single nudlt findings" (i.e., in 
nccordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.520 • Criteria for n low-risk audltee), hnve an acceptable lntemnl 
instltutionnl risk assessment, or the higher threshold must be consistent with State law for public 
Institutions. 

Agencies should reflect this chnnge through policy or tcnns and conditions In nwnrds for those 
Institutions, The effective date for this cltnnge was when the NDAA for FY2017 was signed into law on 
December 23, 2016. 0MB Intends to revise the Unlfom1 Ouidnnce to confonn with the law. 2 

Process for Requesting n Higher Threshold Umlcr the NOAA for FY2017 

Requests for npproval should bo submitted lo the lnslltulion's coonlwnt Federal agency for Indirect cost 
roles; however, Institutions shonld contact the ngcncy before sending the request to determine the correct 
point of contact. The cognizant Fcdernl agency wlll assign review of the request to the npproprlnte office 
within the agency to determine whether to approve, and will mnintain records nnd Justification of nil 
approvals. Tho request should Include the threshold level being requested nnd the justlfication(s) for it 
based on the criteria nbove per Section 217(b) of the NOAA for FY2017. 

lmnJcmentlng the NOAA for FY2018 

This memorandum also Implements provisions of the NDAA for FY 2018, Pub. L. No. 115·91, which 
became law on December 12, 2017, Speclficnlly, section 806 raised tho micro-purelrnse threshold from 
$3,500 to $10,000, and sectlou 805 raised the simplified acquisition threshold from $100,000 to 
$250,000. Pursunnt to 2 C.F.lt § 200.67 (Mlcro-purchnse) nnd 2 C.F.R. § 200.88 (Simplincd acquisition 
threshold), these higher thresholds are not effective until Implemented In tho Federal Acquisition 
Regulntlon (FAR) nt 48 C.F.R. Subpnrt 2, I (Dollnltions), J 

In order to allow maximum flexlbillty for grnnt recipients lu light of the changes to the NOAA for 
FY2018, 0MB ls granting an exception allowing recipients to use the higher threshold of $10,000 for 
micro-purchnses nnd $250,000 for simplified acquisitions in ndvmice of revisions lo the FAR at 48 C.P.R. 
Subpart 2. I and the Unlfonn Onldance. Pursuant lo 2 C.fl.R. § 200.102 (Bxceptions), 0MB mny allow 
exceptions to the Uniform Guidance when exceptions are not prohibited by stntulc, The exception takes 
effect upon tho dnte of Issuance of this memo. Agencies should apply this exception to all recipients. 
Recipients should document nny change based on this exception In nccordnncc with 2 C.F.R. § 200.318 
(Oenernl procurement slandnrds). 

If you have any questions regarding this memornndum, please contact Mary Tut man nt 
Mary.E.Tutman@omb.eop.gov or Oil Trnn at Hal_M._ Trnn@omb.cop.gov, 

1 The American Innovation and Compcilllveness Act, Pub. L. No. 114-329, § 207(b) (2017) stales !hat the Uniform 
Ouldnnce shall be revised to conform with the rcqulrcmcms concemlng the micro-purchase threshold. 

• Codified al 41 U.S.C. § 1902(1). 
2 



AMY II. CANNON 
County l\lan:1gcr 

MELISSA C. CARDINALI 
,\ssistant County 1\1:rnagl'r 

TO: 

FROM: 

THRU: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

Requested by: 

Presentcr(s): 

ITEM N0 .. _ 4 __ 

CUMBERLAND 
COUNTY 

N O ll T 11 C A R O L I N A 

OFFICE OF THE COUNTY MANAGER 

MEMO FOR THE AGENDA OF THE AUGUST 2, 2018 
MEETING OF THE POLICY COMMITTEE 

POLICY COMMITTEE 

DUANE T. HOLDER 
Assistant C:ou11ty l\lanagcr 

TRACY JACKSON 
Assistant County l\lanagl'r 

SALLY S. SH UTT 
Assistant County l\lanagcr 

SALLY SHUTT, ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 

AMY CANNON, COUNTY MANAGER 

JULY 25, 2018 

COLLABORATIVE COMMUNITY BRANDING PROJECT 

AMY CANNON 

SALLY SHUTT 

Estimate of Committee Time Needed: 10 Minutes 

BACKGROUND 

A working group was formed in 20 17 to discuss collaborative marketing among several 
organizations in the county. By early 2018, the group expanded and became the Fayetteville 
& Cumberland Collaborati ve Branding Committee (FCCBC). Participants include the City 
of Fayetteville, Cumberland County, the Tourism Development Authority, Crown Complex, 
Greater Fayetteville Chamber of Commerce, Fayetteville Cumberland County Arts Counci l, 
Fayetteville Arca Convention & Visitors Bureau, Vision 2026, Cool Spring Downtown 
District and Fayetteville Cumberland County Economic Development Corporation (FCEDC). 

The group is pursuing the development of a community-wide branding strategy in order to: 

• Establish a clear and common brand, that encapsulates and leverages the 
community's strengths, assets, diversity, vision, and potential ; 

Courthouse• 5111 Floor• Suite 512 • P.O. Box 1829 •Fayetteville• North Carolina 28302-1829 

(910) 678-7723 / (910) 678-7726 • Fax: (910) 678-7717 



• Develop a common branding platform that all partners may incorporate and expand 
upon in their individual promotion, messaging, and marketing strategies. 

The creation of this centralized messaging and brand identity is intended to: 

• Aggressively promote Fayetteville and Cumberland County as a superior destination 
in which to live, work, visit, explore, create, or grow a business; 

• Differentiate our community from others, separating ourselves from others with 
similar names and demographics; 

• Demonstrate the unity and collaboration that exists between our public, private and 
non-profit partners to the local community and external audiences. 

Request for Proposals 

The committee developed a Request for Proposals for brand development services and 
sought solicitations this summer from highly-qualified agencies, with relevant experience, to 
develop a community-wide branding strategy for the City of Fayetteville, Cumberland 
County, and community branding partners. This collaborative branding platform will 
establish a clear and common brand that highlights and leverages the community's strengths, 
assets, diversity, vision, and potential. 

The RFP generated nine proposals from agencies across the nation. The FCCBC is in the 
process of selecting an agency based on 10 criteria. The firm selected will advise FCCBC 
during all stages of the project and at a minimum will: 

• Review /analyze all data and research that has been previously compiled 
• Conduct research among community stakeholders and external audiences to identify 

existing assets, advantages, perceptions, opportunities, and challenges regarding our 
area's image 

• Create a common brand guide and resource/promotional content library 
• Facilitate brand implementation, promotion, and stakeholder engagement 
• Recommend long-term implementation and evaluation methods 

The committee is looking for innovative, creative proposals for a brand that all partners may 
incorporate and expand upon in their individual branding, promotion, messaging, and 
marketing strategies. 

Robert Van Geons, FCEDC President and CEO, and Jimmy Abbatiello, Marketing and 
Communications Manager, have facilitated the meetings and the RFP process. 

We will bring updated information once the committee completes its review and 
recommends next steps for this collaborative initiative. 



Funding 
The proposed budget of the project is $150,000-$200,000. Funding for the collaborative 
community branding project has not been finalized. It is anticipated that the branding 
partners would participate in the cost-sharing of the project. 

RECOMMENDATION/PROPOSED ACTION: For information purposes only. 


	August 2, 2018 Policy Committee Agenda Packet
	Item 1 - Approval of Minutes - June 7, 2018 Regular Meeting
	Item 2 - Consideration of Ordinance Regulating Maintenance of Vegetation in Residential Subdivisions
	Item 3 - Consideration of Amendment to the Purchasing Policy to Reflect Updates in the Federal Uniform Procurement Standards
	Item 4 - Update from Public Information and Governmental Affairs:  Collaborative Community Branding Project



